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FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC.

Domestic Financial Highlights

Net income per share applicable to common shares:

Basic net income per share(™ ... ... o L L

Diluted net income per share®. ... ... ... .. L.
‘Weighted average number of shares and share

equivalents outstanding—diluted . . . ... ... L.

Balance Sheet Data—End of Period:

Working capital .. ... .. o oo
Total assets. . .. ... ... ...
Long-termdebt . ... ... ... ... .. ... ... ....
Stockholders’ equity . .. ...... .. ... ... .. .. ...

(Inn thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Statement of Operations Data:
Sales . .o $930,709 $952,789  $1,000,120 $886,223 $822,035
Income from operations before depreciation
and amortization . . . .. ... e 80,838 79,296 93,835 87,159 77,123
Netincomel). . .. ... ... ... . ... ... 23,396 18,535 26,521 24,616 18,850

$ 249 $ 182 § 2.54 $ 236 $ 184
$  2.42 $ 180 § 2.52 § 234 $ 182

9,683 10,301 10,508 10,504 10,366
$208,990 $202,536  § 180,274 $150,527 $113,179
580,485 584,853 604,143 539,274 503,554
225,000 225,000 225,000 225,000 225,000
149,036 149,207 134,340 108,800 99,811

Financial Statements for additional disclosure,

+ OQur Mission

(1) Before cumulative effect of accounting change for 2002 and extraordinary charges in 1998.

See Selected Consolidated Financial Data, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Notes to Consolidated

We at Finlay are dedicated to satisfying our customers with the
best assortment, quality and service while maximizing shareholder
value. Our leadership position will be enhanced by adhering

to high performance standards and capitalizing on opportunities

for growth.

+ About Finlay
Finlay Enterprises, Inc. is a leading retailer of
fine jewelry and the largest operator of leased
fine jewelry departments in major department

stores throughout the United States.
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FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC

Letter to Qur Shareholders

For mote than 50 years, Finlay has pursued excellence in retailing with creative

merchandising and a service-driven approach that is responsive to our customers.

I am proud to report that 2002 was no exception. We recorded another year of solid accomplish-
ments thanks to our management team’s well-executed response to the significant economic
challenges of the past year. Finlay’s progress reflects our focus on consistently executing our business
plan, which has allowed us to gain market share and continuously increase our penetration of the host

stores’ business.

Financial Achievements

(In thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001
Diluted Earnings Per Share() §s 2.42 $ 1.80
Net Income(®) $23,396 $18,535
EBITDA $80,838 $79,296
SG&A % 42.9% 43.5%

(1) 2002 before cumulative effect of accounting change.

We continued to effectively manage our inventory levels, as inventory at year-end decreased by
5.0% from last vear. Our tight focus on operating expenses and reduced capital spending resulted in
free cash flow of approximately $28 million before acquiring shares under our stock buyback
program. We ended the year with $69 million of cash on our balance sheet versus $49 million at the
end of the previous year.

Our innovative merchandising and marketing initiatives have driven Finlay’s history of increasing
comparable department store sales. Qur ability to quickly identify emerging trends, and maintain strong
relationships with our suppliers, has enabled us to present superior assortments in our showcases.

Continuing our Best Value program, constantly testing new items and offering fashionable
merchandise in response to consumer demand, remains the highest priority to our organization. We
are dedicated to sustaining and expanding our leadership position in the marketplace.

We completed the final step of our five-year project to build a solid, efficient infrastructure that
will support the growth of our Company. In 1998, we consolidated twenty-five merchandise-
processing locations into a single state-of-the-ar¢ distribution center. We have improved productivity
every year since the distribution center opened and our cost to process a unit in 2002 declined to
$0.56 compared to $1.45 in 1997.

On March 3, 2002, we introduced a new point-of-sale, inventory and merchandising control
systemn in each of our doors. Since that time, we have continued to realize the benefits of this
investment. [t has allowed us to make better decisions in the allocation and distribution of our

Vo




merchandise, thereby increasing productivity. We have also introduced handheld scanners to help
perform inventory counts. The accuracy of our counts has increased while the cost of the inventory
process has decreased. In addition, our shortage results have improved. We will continue to identify
and implement ways of exploiting our technology platform to improve our performance and expand
our market share.

From Finlay’s New York headquarters through its regional and group executives, our team of
experienced managers has helped make us the preeminent company in our field. Much of the success
of our operation comes down to the performance of our approximately 6,000 sales associates in our
1,011 departments and how well they interact with our customers. To ensure that their performance
is as good as 1t can be, we place strong emphasis on training and customer service.

In the last twelve months, we expanded our interactive, computer-based training program. It
provides all our associates, wherever they work, with a uniform and consistent message and raises the
training bar.

In 2002, we instituted a program of recognition for our selling stars—the Platinum Club. In order
to qualify for membership, sales associates must produce a minimum sales volume of $400,000 annu-~
ally. Being a club member entitles them to additional incentives, prime schedules, and recognition
programs. This elite group in 2002 represented 3% of our associates and 10% of our total sales. Our
goal in creating the Platinum Club is to recognize and reward our top sellers and encourage others
to strive to achieve this distinction. This initiative is important in supporting the goal of continually
raising our standard for customer service and propelling our sales growth.

We made substantial strides in 2002 and intend to continue the momentum that we have built in
our business.

Our plans call for further profitable expansion of our partnership with the country’s leading depart-
ment stores. Although the department store segment has struggled, we have continued to increase our
penetration to 3.4% of their total business in 2002, compared to 2.6% in 1995. We believe there is a
potential to reach 4.0% as we grow at a faster rate than department stores. Our fine jewelry area is an
important profit contributor to our host stores and we believe it will continue to be a priority to
them in the months and years ahead.

We will concentrate not only on the management of our existing business, but also on identifying
underdeveloped store groups and new opportunities for our Company. We will review all new
business opportunities in seeking additional sales and profit potential.

While current economic conditions are uncertain, broader demographic trends should favor
the jewelry business. The aging baby boomers with increased discretionary income, plus growing
numbers of women in the workplace, should support growth in our sector over the next decade. To
ensure future success for the Company, our management team is dedicated to:

% Increasing comparable store sales

% Developing businesses beyond our traditional marketplace

< Adding doors within existing store groups

% Expanding our most productive departments

4 Building on our focused and productive merchandising and marketing strategies

<% Continuing to invest in technology

% Increasing our operating leverage and lowering our selling, general and administrative expenses

% Raising selling standards and providing superior customer service

% Strengthening our organization




O

FINLAY ENTERPRISES,

Letter to Our Shareholders

INC

We support the changes in corporate governance mandated by the Sarbanes-Oxley legislation and

the Securities and Exchange Commission. We have responded to these new requirements by further
increasing the independence of our Board of Directors and strengthening our Audit Committee as
well as our Nominating & Corporate Governance Committee. To reinforce proper disclosure in all
our financial reports, we have established the Financial Statement Review Commiittee, consisting of

senior members of management. We are dedicated to ensuring that Finlay exemplifies best practice in

the area of corporate governance.
valuable service, Tom Lee, Renny Smith and Jim Kaplan. We will miss their insight and vision.
It gives me great pleasure to welcome Richard E. Kroon and Thomas M. Murnane to the

Company’s Board of Directors. Mr. Kroon was the Chairman of the Sprout Group, Donaldson,

I would like to thank three of Finlay’s Directors who have left our Board after ten years of
Lufkin & Jenrette’s (“DL]J”) venture capital affiliate from 2000 o 2001, and Managing Partner

from 1981 to 2000, and had a distinguished career with DLJ for thirty-two years. Mr. Murnane
was the Global Director of Marketing and Brand Management for PricewaterhouseCoopers
(“PwC”) Consulting and served on PwC Consulting’s Executive Committee. Rick and Tom

increase the number of our independent directors to seven, while bringing their valuable

knowledge and experience to our Board.
believe our shares continue to represent an attractive investment. Approximately two and a half

years ago, our Board of Directors authorized the purchase of up to $20 million of our Company’s

Our ongoing share repurchase program reflects the confidence we have in our Company and we
stock. To date we have repurchased 1.5 million shares for $16 million. Going forward, we will

balance current returns to shareholders with investnient opportunities as well as potential debt

reduction.
Finlay’s continued progress is testimony to our strong relationships with the country’s finest
department stores, our partnerships with the industry’s premier vendors, and most importantly,

our assoclates, without whose innovation, dedication and motivation our achievements would not be

We want to thank you, our sharecholders, for your continued support and confidence.

possible.
Our management team remains committed to achieving outstanding results and maximizing
shareholder value.
-

Arthur E. Reiner
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

IS
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FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC.
Selected Consolidated Financial Data
The selected consolidated financial information below should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto.
Fiscal Year Ended(!)
: Feb. 1, Feb. 2, Feb. 3, Jan. 29,  Jan. 30,
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) : 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Statement of Operations Data: ' : ’
Sales . $930,709 $952,789 $1,000,120 $912,978 $863,428
Costofsales. . ....... ... ... ... ... T 450,532 . 479,255 496,291 449,912 421,450
Cost of sales—Sonab inventory write-down® . . . . ... — — — 7,839 —
Gross margin@® . . . .. e 480,177 473,534 503,829 455,227 441,978
Selling, general and administrative expenses . .. .. . ... 399,339 394,238 409,994 379,083 364,652
(Credit) charges associated with the sale and closure ) :
of Sonab@ . . ... .. L e (1,432) — — 20,792 —
Depreciation and amortization . . . .. ............. 17,566 20,089 17,549 16,895 15,672
Income from operations. . . ... ... 64,704 59,207 76,286 38,457 61,654
Interest expense, net® . .. ... L oL 24,876 26,937 30,057 29,505 33,154
- Income before income taxes, cumulative effect of : _ A ‘
accounting change and extraordinary charges . . . . .. 39,828 32,270 46,229 8,952 28,500
Provision for income taxes. . .. .. ..o 15,580 13,735 19,708 4,889 11,986
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change
"~ and extraordinary charges. ... ............ . ... 24,248 18,535 26,521 4,063 16,514
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net® .. ... .. 17,209 — ) — — =
Extraordinary charges from early extinguishment
of debt, net® .. ... .. ... e - — - — — — 7415
NEtINCOME « vttt e $ 7,039 $ 18,535 § 26,521 $ 4,063 $ 9,099
Net income per share applicable to common shares:
Basic net income per share: ’
Before cumulative effect of accounting change
and extraordinary charges .. .............. $§ 258 8§ 182 $ 2.54 $ 039 5 161
Cumulative effect of accounting change . ... .. .. - 8§ (1.83) $ — 8 — $ — $ —
Extraordinary charges from early extinguishment ) :
ofdebt. .. ....... . ... $ — $ — $ — $ — 5 (0.72)
Netincome. ... ....... .. i $ 0.75 3 182 $ 2.54 $ 039 § 089
Diluted net income per share: '
. Before cumulative effect of accounting change
and extraordinary charges . . ... e $ 251 $ 180 $ 2,52 $ 039 $ 159
Cumulative effect of accounting change . . . ... .. $ (1.78) $ — ¥ — $ — $ —
Extraordinary chargés from early extinguishment - ‘ ‘ '
of debt ..o ... 08— 3 — % — 8 — § (072
Netincome. . . ... $ 073 $ 180 $ 2.52 $ 039 $ 088
Weighted average number of shares and share »
equivalents outstanding (000%): ‘
Basic. ........... [P ' 9,416 10,180 10,421 10,413 10,229
Diluted. .. ... ... 9,683 10,301 10,508 10,504 10,366
6




Fiscal Year Ended(!

(1) Each of the fiscal years for which information is presented includes 52 weeks except 2000, which includes 53 weeks.
{2) Included in 1999 are charges associated with the sale and closure of Sonab totaling $28.6 million. Included in cost of sales is $7.8 million for the write-down of
" inventory with the balance of $20.8 million recorded as an operating expense. Included in 2002 is a $1.4 million credit which represents a revision of the Company's
estimate of closure expenses to reflect its remaining liability associated with the closure of Sonab. Refer to Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(3) Finlay utilizes the LIFO method of accounting for inventories. If Finlay had valued inventories using the first-in, first-out inventory valuation method, the
gross margin would have increased (decreased) as follows: $2.3 million, $3.8 million, $1.8 million, $(1.1) million and $(1.0) million for 2002, 2001, 2000, 1999

and 1998, respectively.

Feb. 1, Feb. 2, Feb. 3, Jan. 29, Jan. 30,
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Pro Forma Domestic Statement of Operations Data("):
Sales . ... $930,709 £952,789 $1,000,120 $886,223 $822,035
EBITDA®) . .. .. $ 80,838 $ 79,296 $ 93,835 $ 87,159 $ 77,123
Netincome . .. ... ..., $ 23,396 $ 18535. § 26,521 $ 24,616 $ 18,850
Net income per share applicable to common shares: : )
Basic net income per share , .~ . . . $  2.49 $ 182 . % 2.54 $ 236 $ 1.84
Diluted net income pershare . ................ $  2.42 $ 1.80 % 252 % 234 $ 1.82
Operating and Financial Data: ' - :
Number of Departments (end of year)®):
Consolidated. . . . ... .. e 1,011 1,006 1,053 987 1,109
Domestic .. ... ... i 1,011 1,006 1,053 987 959
Percentage increase (decrease) in sales(19) .. .. ... ... L (2.3)% (4.7)% 9.5% 5.7% 12.2%
Percentage increase (decrease) in comparable
Department sales(11);
Consolidated . . .. .......... ... .. ........ 2.1% (3.00% 2.1% 6.8% 3.9%
Domestic . ... ... 0.1% (3.0)% 2.1% 8.1% 5.4%
Average domestic sales per Departmentm) .......... $ 923 § 925 $ 981 $ 9t $ 857
EBITDA® . . ... . 82,270 79,296 93,835 55,352 77,326
Capital expenditures . .. ............... ... ... 12,489 13,850 18,118 14,972 14,874
Cash flows provided from (used in): : _
Operating activities . . .. ........ ... ... ....... $ 45,309 $ 39,209 $ 27,860 $ 38,804 $ 23,121
Investing activities. . . . ... .. .. ... (15,758)  (17,432) (30,403)  (21,054)  (23,134)
Financing activities . . . ... .....ooovvernn. .. (9,597) (4,070) - (981) 137 3,692
Balance Sheet Data—FEnd of Period: " . . :
Working capital .. ...... ... . L $208,990 $202,536 $ 180,274 $157,587 $147,337
Total @ssets . . oo v 580,485 584,853 604,143 557,042 543,992
Short~term debt, including current portion of
long-termdebt .. ....... ... ... .. ... . ... — — — — —
Long-termdebt . ...... ... ... ... .. ... ... 225,000 225,000 225,000. 225,000 225,000
Total stockholders’ equity .. ............ ... ... 149,036 149,207 134,340 108,800 99,811

(4) As a result of certain call requirements associated with the previously outstanding debentures and notes, Finlay had outstanding both the new debr and the old debt
for a period of rwenty-five days in 1998. The net effect of the above, offset by reduced interest expense on the borrowmgs under the Revolving Credit Agreement
and interest income on excess cash balances, was $0.7 million.

(3) In accordance with the provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s ("FASB™) Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF") Issue No. 02-16, “Accounting by
" a Customer (Including a Reseller) for Cash Consideration Received from a Vendor” (“EITF 02-16"), the Company recorded a cumulative effect of accounting

change as of February 3, 2002, the date of adoption, that decreased net income for 2002 by $17.2 million, net of tax, or $1.78 per share, on a diluted basis. The
application of EITF 02-16 changes the Company’s accounting treanment for the recognition of vendor allowances. In 2002, $20.0 million of vendor allowances has
been reflected as a reduction 1o cost of sales. In prior years, these allowances were recorded as a reduction to gross advertising expenses and thus decreased selling,
general and administrative expenses ("SG&A”). Refer to Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(6) The extraordinary charges of $12.2 million include $7.1 million for redemption premiums on the previously outstanding debentures and notes and $3.9 million to
write off deferred financing costs and debt discount associated with the previously outstanding debentures and notes. The income tax benefit on the extraordinary
charges totaled $4.8 million. :

(7) The pro forma financial information reflects the Company’s domestic operations only and excludes the operations of Sonab, as well as the impact of the sale and

closure of Sonab. The pro forma financial information for 2002 excludes the Company’s adoption of EITF 02-16, described in Note 5 above. Additionally, the
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FINLAY ENTERPRISES, INC.

Selected Consolidated Financial Data (ontined

pro forma financial information for 1998 excludes (i) the extraordinary charge of $12.2 million, on a pre-tax basis, described in Note 6 above, and (ii) the interest
associated with refinancing, described in Note 4 above. The pro forma financial information was calculated as follows:
Fiscal Year Ended(!)

. Feb. 1, Feb. 2, Feb. 3, Jan. 29, Jan. 30,

(Dollars in thousands, excepr per share data) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Sales:

Reportedsales .. .. .. .. e $930,709 §952,789 $1,000,120 $912,978 $863,428

Less: Sonabsales. ... ... .. . ... .. O _— — — (26,755) (41,3593)
CProformasales. . L $930,709 $952,789 $1,000,120 $886,223 3822,035
EBITDA: ‘ :

[ncome from OPerations . . ... ... ... S 64,704 $ 59,207 $ 76,286 $ 38,457 $ 61,654,

Add: Depreciation and amortization. . . ... ... .. L L0 0 oo 17,566 20,089 17,549 16,895 15,672

Consolidated EBITDA . . ... .. . i i e 82,270 79,296 93,835 55,352 77,326

Add: Senab operatingloss . ... ... L U — — — 3,808 441

Less: Sonab depreciation and amortization. . . ... . .. ... .. o L — — — (632) (644)

Domestic EBITDA . .. . ... ... . i [P e 82,270 79,296 93,835 58,528 77,123

Add: (Credit) charges associated with sale and closure of Sonab . .. ........ ... .. (1,432) —_— — 28,631 —_

o

80,838 $ 79,296 $ 93835

R

Proforma EBITDA .. ... ... . ... .. ... TS 87,159 $ 77123

Net income:

Reported netincome . ........ ... O $ 7,039 $ 18,535 § 26,521 $ 4,063 § 9,099
Add: Sonab netloss .. ... .. — — — 3,517 1,936
Add: (Credit) charges associated with sale and closure of Sonab, net. . ... ... ..., (852) — — 17,036 . —
Add: Interest expense, net™® L L e - = — — 400
Add: Cumulative effect of accounting change, net . ... ......... .............. 17,209 — — — —
Add: Extraordinary charges from early extinguishment of debt, net . ... ... ...... . - — — - 7.415

©“

Pro formanetincome. .. ....... .. .......... e 23,396 - 8 18535 $ 26,521 § 24,616 $ 18,850

Basic net income per share:

Reported netincome pershare ... ... ... L L oL $ 075 5 182 S 2.54 5  0.39 $ 0.8%
Add: Sonabnetloss . ... L e — — — 0.34 0.19
Add: (Credit) charges associated with the sale and closure of Sonab, net. .. ....... ... (0.09) — — 1.63 —
Add: Interest expense, net™® . ... i e —— — — . — 0.04
Add: Cumulative effect of accounting change, net . ... . ...... .. ... ... . .. .. 1.83 — — — —
Add: Extraordinary charges from early extinguishment of debt, net . ... ... .. .. — — — — 0.72
Pro forma net income pershare. ... ... .. ... L L o L i $ 249 § 182 $ 2.54 $ 236 $  1.84
Diluted net income per share: . .
Reported net income pershare ... .. ... ... . Lo $ 073 § 1.80 S 2.52 $ 039 § 088
Add: Sonabnetloss .\ ... e L — — — 0.33 0.19
Add: (Credit) charges associated with the sale and closure of Sonab, net. .. ... ... .. T (0.09) — — 1.62 —
Add: Interest expense, nect® ... ... L. o L. —_ — — — 0.04
Add; Cumulative effect of accounting change, net . . ... ......... ... ...... ... 1.78 — —_— —_ —
Add: Extracrdinary charges from early extinguishment of debt, net . . ... ..., . .. _ — — — 0.71
Pro forma net income-pershare. .. ... ... ... ... L $ 242 . § 180 $ 2.52 § 234 8  1.82

The Company believes that the pro forma domestic statement of operations data presents, on a comparable basis, the Company’s domestic results of operations and
provides additional information for analyzing the Company’s operating performance. This presentation should not be construed as a substitute for income from
operations, net income or cash flow from operating activities (all as determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP™)) for the purpose
of analyzing Finlay's operating performance, financial position and cash flows as this presentation is not defined by GAAP. Finlay has presented this information,
because it is commonly used by certain investors to compare companies on the basis of consistent performance.

(8) EBITDA, a non-GAAP financial measure, represents income from operations before depreciation and amartization expenses and is calculated as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended
‘ ~ , Eeb. 1, Feb. 2, Feb. 3, Jan. 29, Jan. 30,
(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Income from operations . .. . ... .. e, $ 64,704 $ 59,207 $ 76,286 $ 38,457 $ 61,654
Add: Depreciation and amortization. . ... ... ... .. i 17,566 20,089 17,549 16,895 15,672
EBITDA. ... . O $ 82,270 $ 79,296 $ 93,835 $ 55,352 $ 77,326

For 1999 and 2002, consolidated EBITDA includes the charges totaling $28.6 million and the credit totaling $1.4 million, respectively, associated with the sale and
closure of Sonab. The Company believes EBITDA provides additional information for determining its ability to meet future debt service requirements. EBITDA
should not be construed as a substitute for inconie from operations, net income or cash flow from operating activities (all as determined in accordance with GAAP)
for the purpose of analyzing Finlay’s operating performance, financial position and cash flows as EBITDA 1s not defined by generally accepted accounting principles.
Finlay has presented EBITDA, however, because it is commonly used by certain investors to analyze and compare companies on the basis of operating performance and
to determine a company’s ability to service and/or incur debt. Finlay’s computation of EBITDA may not be comparable to similar titled measures of other companies.
(9) Includes Departments and stand-alone locations.

(10) Excluding sales for the 53rd week of 2000, the percentage increase in sales for 2000 was 8.8% and the percentage decrease in sales for 2001 was 4.1%.

(11) Comparable Department sales are calculated by comparing the sales from Departments open for the same months in the comparable periods.

(12) Average domestic sales per Deparument is determined by dividing domestic sales by the average of the number of domestic Departments open at the beginning and
at the end of each period. ‘ :

b
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FINLAY ENTERPRISES,

INC.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations

The following should be read in conjunction with “Selected
Consolidated Financial Information” and the Consolidated Finan-
cial Statements of Finlay Enterprises, Inc. (the “Company”) and
Notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Certain statements under this caption “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
constitute “forward-looking statements” under the Securities Act

of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and the Securities -

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). See
“Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements”.

GENERAL

The Company is a holding company and conducts business
through Finlay Fine Jewelry Corporation (“Finlay Jewelry”), its
wholly owned subsidiary. References to “Finlay” mean,
collectively, the Company and Finlay Jewelry. All-references
herein to leased Deparuments refer to fine jewelry Departments
operated pursuant to license agreements or other arrangements
with host department stores.

On January 22, 2003, Finlay Jewelry’s revolving credit agree-
ment with General Electric Capital Corporation (“G.E. Capital”)
and certain other lenders was amended and restated (the
“Revolving Credit Agreement”). The Revolving Credit Agree-
ment, which matures in January 2008, provides Finlay Jewelry
with a senior secured revolving line of credit up to $225.0 million
(the “Revolving Credit Facility”).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. These generally accepted
accounting principles require management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain financial statement accounts
reported and disclosed at the ‘date of the financial statements.
Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Certain of the Company’s significant accounting policies are
described in Note 2 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The Company believes that the following discussion
addresses the critical accounting policies, which are those that are
most important to the portrayal of the Company’s financial con-
dition and results of operations and require management’s most
difficult, subjective or complex judgments. The Company is. not
aware of any likely events or circumstances which would result in
different amounts being reported that would materially affect its
financial condition or results of operations.

Merchandise inventories. The Company values its inventories at
the lower of cost or market. The cost is determined by the last-in,
first-out method utilizing selected producer price indices pub-
lished for jewelry and watches by the Bureau of Labor Statistics.
Factors related to inventories such as future consumer demand
and the economy’s impact on consumer discretionary spending,
inventory aging, ability to return merchandise to vendors, mer-
chandise condition and anticipated markdowns are analyzed to

=

determine estimated net realizable values. An adjustment 1s
recorded to reduce the LIFO cost of inventories, if required. Any
significant unanticipated changes in the factors above could have
a significant impact on the value of the inventories and the
Company’s reported operating results. '

Derivative instruments, The Company is exposed to market
risk related to changes in the price of gold and at times enters
into futures contracts, such as forwards, to hedge against the risk
of gold price fluctuations. In 2001, the Company adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”,
which requires that all derivative instruments be recorded on the
balance sheet as either an asset or a liability measured at its fair
value. Accounting for derivative instruments under this pro-
nouncement did not have a material impact on the Company’s
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows for 2002
and 2001.

Vendor allowances. The Company receives allowances from its
vendors through a variety of programs and arrangements, includ-
ing cooperative advertising. The allowances are generally
intended to offset the Company’s costs of promoting, advertising
and selling the vendors’ products in its Departments. Vendor

-allowances are recognized as a reduction of cost of sales or SG&A

when the purpose for which the vendor funds were intended
to be used has been fulfilled. Accordingly, a reduction or increase
in vendor allowances has an inverse impact on cost of sales
and/or SG&A.

_ In March 2003, the EITF finalized Issue No. 02-16, “Account-
ing by a Customer (Including a Reseller) for Cash Consideration
Received from a Vendor”. EITF 02-16 addresses the accounting
treatment for vendor allowances and provides that cash considera-
tion received from a vendor should be presumed to be a reduction
of the prices of the vendors’ product and should therefore be
shown as a reduction in the purchase price of the merchandise.
Further, these allowances should be recognized as a reduction in
cost of sales when the related product is sold. To the extent that
the cash consideration represents a reimbursement of a specific,
incremental and identifiable cost, then those vendor allowances
should be used to offset such costs.

In accordance with EITF 02-16, the Company recorded a
cumulative effect of accounting change as of February 3, 2002,
the date of adoption, that decreased net income for 2002 by
$17.2 million, net of tax, or $1.78 per share, on a diluted bass.
As ‘of.Eebruary 3, 2002, deferred vendor allowances totaled
(i) $17,129,000 for owned merchandise, and (ii) $12,306,000 for
merchandise received on consignment. As of February 1, 2003,
the Company’s fiscal year end, deferred vendor allowances
totaled (1) $18,452,000 for owned merchandise, which is included
as an offset to merchandise inventories on the 2002 Consolidated
Balance Sheet, and (i) $10,493,000 for merchandise received on
consignment, which is included as deferred income on the 2002-
Consolidated Balance Sheet. In 2002, this change resulted in the
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reclassification of vendor allowances of $20.0 million, which had
previously been accounted for as a reduction to SG&A, to now
reduce cost of sales and consequently, increase gross margin. The
Company’s 2002 unaudited quarterly financial data has been
revised to reflect this change in accouhting method. See Note 10
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company.

The adoption of EITF 02-16 is not expected to have a-material
. impact on the financial position or results of operations of the
Company in 2003. ,

During 2001 and 2000, the Company recorded its vendor
allowances as an offset to gross advertising expenses, which is
included in SG&A on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
For 2001 and 2000, the unaudited pro forma impact of the adop-
tion of EITF 02-16, as if it had occurred prior to 2000; was to
decrease cost of sales and increase SG&A by $20,374,000 and
$23,665,000, respectively. For both years, net income and net
income per share would not have been materially different.

Revenue recognition. The Company recognizes revenue upon
the sale of merchandise, either owned or consigned, to its cus-
tomers, net of anticipated returns. The provision for sales returns
is based on the Company’s historical return rate.

Covenant requirements. The Company’s agreements covering
the Revolving Credit Agreement, the -$75.0 million aggregate
principal amount of 9% Senior Debentures due May 1, 2008 (the
“Senior Debentures”) and the $150.0 million aggregate principal
amount of 8%% Senior Notes due May 1, 2008 (the “Senior
Notes”) each require thar Finlay comply with certain restrictive
and financial covenants. In addition, Finlay Jewelry is party to an
amended and restated gold consignment agreement (the “Gold
Consignment Agreement”), which also contains certain covenants.
As of and for the year ended February 1, 2003, the Company
was in compliance with all of its covenants. Management expects
to be in compliance with all of its covenants through 2003,
Because compliance is based, in part, oh management estimates
and actual results can differ from those estimates, there can be
no assurance that the Company will be in compliance with
the covenants in the future or that the lenders will waive or
amend any of the covenants should the Company be in violation
of any such covenants. The Company believes the assumptions
used are appropriate. v

The Revolving Credit Agreement contains customary
covenants, including limitations on, or relating to capital expen-
ditures, liens, indebtedness, investments, mergers, acquisitions,
affiliate transactions, management compensation and the pay-
ment of dividends and other restricted payments. The Revolving
Credit Agreement also contains various financial covenants,
including minimum earnings and fixed charge coverage ratio
requirements and certain maximum debt limitations.

The indenture relating to the Senior Debentures (the “Senior
Debenture Indenture”) and the indenture relating to the Senior
- Notes (the “Senior Note Indenture”, and collectively with the
Senior Debenture Indenture, the “Senior Indentures”) each con-
tain restrictions relating to, among other things, the payment of

dividends, the making of certain investments or other restricted
payments, the incurrence of additionial indebtedness, the creation
of certain liens, entering into transactions with affiliates, the dispo-
sition of certain assets and ‘engaging in mergers and consolidations.

The Gold Consignment Agreement requires Finlay Jewelry to
comply with certain covenants, including restrictions on the
incurrence of certain indebtedness, the creation of liens, engag-
ing in transactions with affiliates and limitations on the payment
of dividends. In addition, the Gold Consignment Agreement also
contains various financial covenants, including minimum earn-
ings and fixed charge coverage ratio requirements and certain
maximum debt limitations.

EFFECT OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

On February 3, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. SFAS No. 142 requires
that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
no longer to be amortized but tested for impairment on an
annual basis. The Company has determined that there was no
impairment of goodwill as of February 3, 2002 since the carrying
value of the Company’s reporting unit did not exceed its fair
value. In making this assessment, management relied on a number
of factors including 2002’s operating results, business plans, eco-
nomic projections, anticipated future cash flows and marketplace
data. A change in these underlying assumptions may cause a
change in the results of the tests and, as such, could cause fair
value to be less than the carrying value. In such event, Finlay
would then be required to record a charge, which would impact
earnings. Finlay will continue to review the carrying value of
goodwill for impairment on an annual basis or more frequently if
circumstances indicate impairment may have occurred. The
Company’s goodwill amortization in 2001 and 2000 totaled $3.7
million in each vyear.

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting
for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”. SFAS No.
144 addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impair-
ment or disposal of long-lived assets. This statement extends the
reporting requiremnents to include reporting separately as discon-
tinued operations components of an entity that have either been
disposed of or classified as held-for-sale. The Company adopted
the provisions of SFAS No. 144 in 2002 and the adoption did
not have a material impact on the Company’s financial position
or results of operations.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS NOT YET AD@PTED
In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of
FASB Statement No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB No.

+13, and Technical Corrections”, which amends certain existing

authoritative pronouncements to make various technical correc-
tions, clarify meanings, or describe their applicability under
changed conditions. Additionally, the statement provides that
gains and losses from debt extinguishment are not automatically
shown as an extraordinéry item on a company’s statement of oper-
ations. The provisions of SFAS No. 145 are effective for fiscal




years beginning after May 15, 2002. The adoption of SFAS No.
145 is not expected to have a material impact ‘on the financial

position or results of operations of the Company.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS .
The following table sets forth operating results ‘as a percentage
of sales for the periods indicated:
Fiscal Year Ended

Feb. 1, Feb. 2, Feb. 3,
2003 2002 2001

Statement of Operations Data:
Sales. . .. ... 100.0% 100.0%  100.0%
Costofsales . ................. 48.4 50.3 49.6

Grossmargin. . . ............. 51.6 49.7 50.4
Selling, general and administrative -

EXPENSES . . ..o 42.9 41.4 41.0
Credit associated with the sale and

closure of Sonab. .. ... ...... .. (0.2) — —
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . 1.9 2.1 1.8
Income from operations. . ... ... .. 7.0 6.2 7.6
Interest expense, net .. .......... 2.7 238 3.0
Income before income taxes and

cumulative effect of accounting

change . ... ... ... .. .. L. 4.3 3.4 4.6
Provision for income taxes . .. ... .. 1.7 1.4 © 2.0
Income before cumulative effect

of accounting change . . ... ... .. 2.6 2.0 2.6
Cumulative effect of accounting

change, nee. oL 1.8 — —
Netincome .................. 0.8%

2.0%

(1) See Note 5 to “Selected Consolidated Financial Data”. .

2002 COMPARED WITH 2001

Sales. Sales decreased $22.1 million, or 2.3%, in 2002 com-~
pared to 2001. Comparable Department sales increased 0.1% in
2002, which management attributes to a continued challenging
retail environment. Comparable Department sales includes sales
from Departments open for the same month during comparable
periods. Total sales were negatively impacted by approximately
$31.0 million, or 3.3%, as a result of the 2001 closing of three
host store gréups, offset by the net effect of new Department
openings and closings. ’

Finlay’s merchandising and marketing strategy includes the fol-
lowing inidatives: (i) emphasizing its “Key Item” and “Best Value”
merchandising programs, which provide a targeted assortment of
items at competitive prices; (ii) increasing focus on holiday and
event~driven promotions as well as host store marketing programs;
and (iii) positioning the Company’s Departments as a “destination
location” for fine jewelry. ’ .

During 2002, Finlay opened 21 Departments-within existing
store groups, which included 11 Departments in May. During
this period, Finlay closed 16 Departments including five in'May
and three in Federated. ‘

Gross margin. Gross margin increased by $6.6 million in 2002
compared to 2001 and, as a percentage of sales, gross margin
increased by 1.9%, primarily due to the Company’s adoption of
EITF 02-16. The application of EITF 02-16 changes the

- Company’s accounting treatment for the recognition of vendor

allowances. In 2002, $20.0 million of vendor allowances has been
reflected as a reduction to cost of sales based on the sale of the
related product. In prior years, these allowances were recorded as a

- reduction to gross advertising expenses and thus decreased SG&A.

2.6%

Excluding the adoption of EITF 02-16, gross margin decreased
by $14.0 million in 2002 compared to 2001 and, as a percentage
of sales, gross margin decreased by 0.3%, primarily due to (i) man-
agement’s continued efforts to increase market penetration and
market share through itsbpricing strategy and (i) the impact of
higher gold prices. Offsetting these factors were favorable physi-
cal inventory shortage results and a lower LIFO charge of $2.3
million in 2002 versus $3.8 million in 2001,

Selling, general and administrative expenses. SG&A totaled
$399.3 million, an increase of $5.1 million, or 1.3%, in 2002 com-
pared to 2001, primarily due to the Company’s adoption of EITF
02-16 which, as discussed above, resulted in a $20.0 million
increase to SG&A. SG&A as a percentage of sales increased to
42.9% in 2002 from 41.4% in 2001.

Excluding the adoption of EITF 02-16, SG&A decreased by
$14.9 million, or 3.8%, in 2002 compared to 2001 primarily due
to payroll expense and lease fees associated with the decrease in
the Company’s sales and reduced gross advertising expenses.
Additionally, the Company recorded a $1.8 million reduction in
employee medical benefits expense associated with favorable
claims experience subsequent to a change in medical insurance
carriers. SG&A as a percentage of sales, excluding the adoption
of EITF 02-16, decreased to 40.8% in 2002 from 41.4% in 2001,

Credit associated with the sale and closure of Sonab. In 2002, the
Company revised its 1999 estimate of closure expenses to reflect
its remaining lability associated with the closure of Sonab and, as
a result, recorded a credit of $1.4 million.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization
decreased by $2.5 million in 2002 compared to 2001, reflecting -
the discontinuance of goodwill amortization of $3.7 million
and the effect of certain assets becoming fully depreciated, offset
by additional depreciation and amortization as a result of capital
expenditures and capitalized software costs for the most recent
12 months.

Interest expense, net. Interest expense decreased by $2.1 million
reflecting a lower weighted average interest rate (7.6% for 2002
compared to 7.8% for 2001) and a decrease in average borrowings
($286.2 million for 2002 compared to $305.8 rhillion for 2001).

Provision for income taxes. The effective tax rate, before the
cumulative effect of accounting change, decreased to 39.1% in
2002 from 42.6% in 2001, primarily as a result of the cessation in
2002 of the amortization of non-deductible goodwill.
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Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of taxes. The Company
elected to adopt EITF 02-16 retroactive to the beginning of
2002 and recorded a cumulative effect after-tax reduction to
earnings of $17.2 million. The charge relates to the deferral of a
portion of the Company’s previously collected vendor allowances
relating to both owned merchandise and merchandise received
on consignment. '

Net incoine. Net income of $7.0 million for 2002 represents a
decrease of $11.5 million as compared to net income of $18.5
million in 2001 as a result of the factors discussed above.

2001 COMPARED WITH 2000

Sales. Sales decreased $47.3 million, or 4.7%, in 2001 com-
pared to 2000. Excluding sales for the 53rd week of 2000, sales
decreased 4.1%. Comparable Department sales decreased 3.0%.
Management attributes this decrease in comparable Department
sales primarily to a challenging retail environment and the extraor-
dinary events of Septernber 11, 2001 and its impact on the econ~
omy, which resulted in reduced consumer discretionary spending.
Total sales were negatively impacted by $17.3 million as a result
of the 2001 closing of two host store groups, offset by the benefit
of a full year of sales from the former J.B. Rudolph departments
and the net effect of new Department openings and closings.

During 2001, Finlay opened 33 Departments within existing
store groups, which included 22 Departments in May. During
this period Finlay closed 80 Departments which were comprised
of the following: ' :

Number of
Store Group Departments | Reason
Stern’s .. ... .. 23 Store group was closed by Federated.
Proffitt’s . .. ... 16 Closed smaller Departments and, at the
end of 2001, host store consolidated
under one lessee.
Liberty House. . 12 Federated’s acquisition of Liberty House. .
Dillards .. .. .. 7 Closed smaller Departments.
Other. ....... 22 Department closings within existing
- store groups.
80

Gross margin. Gross margin decreased by $30.3 million in
2001 compared to 2000 and, as a percentage of sales, gross margin
decreased by 0.7%, primarily due to (i) management’s continued
efforts to increase market penetration and market share through
its pricing strategy, (ii) a charge of $3.8 million in the LIFO pro-
vision compared to the prior year’s provision of $1.8 million and
(1ii) a charge of $1.5 million for the markdown of aged inventory.

Selling, general and administrative expenses. SG&A totaled
$394.2 million, a decrease of $15.8 million, or 3.8%, in 2001
compared to 2000 due primarily to payroll expense and lease fees
associated with the decrease in the Company’ sales. SG&A as a
percentage of sales increased to 41.4% in 2001 from 41.0% in
2000 as a result of the negative impact of payroll and other
expenses as a percentage of sales due to the lower sales volume.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization
increased by $2.5 million in 2001 compared to 2000, reflecting
$13.9 million in capital expenditures and an increase in capital~
ized software costs for the most recent 12 months. Additionally,
during 2001, the Company began amortizing the capitalized
software for its new merchandising and point-of-sale systems.
These costs were offset by the effect of certain ‘assets becoming
fully depreciated. ‘

Interest expense, net. Interest expense decreased by $3.1 million
reflecting a lower weighted average interest rate (7.8% for 2001
compared to 8.6% for 2000) and a decrease in average borrowings

($305.8 million for 2001 compared to §321.6 million for 2000).

Provision for income taxes. The effective income tax rate for
2001 and 2000 was 42.6%.

Net income. Net income of $18.5 million for 2001 represents
a decrease of $8.0 million as compared to net income of $26.5
million in 2000 as a result of the factors discussed above.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESQURCES

Finlay’s primary capital requirements are for funding working
capital for new Departments and for working capital growth of
existing Departments and, to a lesser extent, capital expenditures
for opening new Departments, renovating existing Departments
and information technology investments. For 2002 and 2001,
capital expenditures totaled $12.5 million and $13.9 million,
respectively. Total capital expenditures for 2003 are estimated
to be approximately $12.0 to $13.0 million. Although capital
expenditures are limited by the terms of the Revolving Credit
Agreement, to date this limitation has not precluded the Company
from satisfying its capital expenditure requirements.

Finlay’s operations substantially preclude customer receivables
as Finlay’s lease agreements require host stores to remit sales pro-
ceeds for each month (without regard to whether such sales were
cash, store credit or national credit card) to Finlay approximately
three weeks after the end of such month. However, Finlay cannot
ensure the collection of sales proceeds from its host stores.
Additionally, on average, approximately 50% of Finlay’s merchan-
dise has been carried on consignment. The Company’s working




capital balance was $209.0 million at February 1, 2003, an
increase of $6.5 million from February 2, 2002. The increase
resulted primarily from the impact of 2002% net income (exclu-
sive of depreciation and amortization) partially offset by the
adoption of EITF 02-16, capital expenditures, additions to
deferred charges and the purchase of treasury stock.

The seasonality of Finlay’s business causes working capital
requirements, and therefore borrowings under the Revolving
-Credit Agreement, to reach their highest level in the months of
Qcrober, November and December in anticipation of the year-
end holiday season. ‘Accordingly, Finlay experiences seasonal cash
needs as inventory levels peak. Additionally, substantially all of
Finlay’s lease agreements provide for accelerated payments during
the months of November and December, which require the host
store groups to remit to Finlay 75% of the estimated months’
sales prior to or shortly following the end of each such month.
These proceeds result in a significant increase in the Company’s
cash, which is used to reduce the Company';s borrowings under
the Revolving Credit Agreement. During 2002, by closely mon-.
itoring sales and the continued challenging retail environment,
the Company reduced its inventory levels as compared to 2001,
During 2002, the reduced inventory levels favorably impacted
the Company’s outstanding borrowings under the Revolving
Credit Agreement. k ‘ .

In January 2003, Finlay entered into the Revolving Credit
Agreement, which expires in January 2008. The Revolving
Credit Agreement provides Finlay Jewelry with a line of credit of
up to $225.0 million to finance working capital needs. Amounts
outstanding under the Revolving Credit Agreement bear interest
at a rate equal to, at Finlay’s option, (i) the prime rate plus a
margin ranging from zero to 1.0% or (i1) adjusted Eurodollar rate
plus a margin ranging from 1.0% to 2.0%, in each case depending
on the financial performance of the Company.

In each year, Finlay is required to reduce the outstanding
revolving credit balance and letter of credit balance under the
Revolving Credit Agreement to $50.0 million or less and $20.0
million or less, respectively, for a 30 consecutive day period (the
“Balance Reduction Requirement”). Borrowings under the
Revolving Credit Agreement at February 1, 2003 and February 2,
2002 were zero. The average amounts outstanding under the
Revolving Credit Agreement for 2002 and 2001 were $61.2 mil-
lion and $80.8 million, respectively. The maximum amount out-
standing for 2002 was $111.4 million, at which point the unused
excess availability was $106.4 million. At February 1, 2003, the
Company was in compliance with all of its covenants under the
Revolving Credit Agreement.

Finlay’s long-term needs for external financing will depend on

its rate of growth, the level of internally generated funds and the
ability to continue obtaining substantial amounts of merchandise
on advantageous terms,. including consignment arrangements

with its vendors. At both February 1, 2003 and February 2,

2002, £359.7 million of consignment merchandise from approxi-
mately 300 vendors was on hand. For 2002, Finlay had an average
balance of consignment merchandise of $360.5 million as com-
pared to an average balance of $377.4 million in 2001.

A significant amount of Finlay’s operating cash flow has been
used or will be required to pay interest, directly or indirectly, with
respect to the Senior Debentures, the Senior Notes and amounts
due under the Revolving Credit Agreement, including the pay-
ments required pursuant to the Balance Reduction Requirement.
As of February 1, 2003, Finlay’s outstanding borrowings were
$225.0 million, which included a $75.0 million balance under the
Senior Debentures and a $150.0 million balance under the Senior
Notes. At February 1, 2003, the Company was in compliance
with all of its covenants under the Senior Indentures.

The Company may, at the discretion of management, purchase
Senior Debentures and/or Senior Notes from time to time in the
open market, Additionally, beginning on May 1, 2003, the |
Senior Debentures and Senior Notes will be redeemable, in
whole or in part, at the option of Finlay, at specified redemption
prices plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of the
redemption. The extent and timing of any bond repurchases will
depend upon general business and market conditions, bond
prices, availability under the Revolving Credit Facility, compli-
ance with certain restrictive covenants and Finlay’s cash position
and requirements going forward.

Effective September 30, 2002, Finlay Jewelry amended the
Gold Consignment Agreement to extend the term to July 31,
2005 and to permit Finlay to obtain up to the lesser of (i) 165,000
fine troy ounces or (i) $50.0 million worth of gold, subject to a
formula as prescribed by the Gold Consignment Agreement. At
February 1, 2003, amounts outstanding under the Gold Con-

“signment Agreement totaled 134,785 fine troy ounces, valued at

approximately §49.5 million. The average amount outstanding
under the Gold Consignment Agreement was $39.1 million in
2002. In the event this agreement is terminated, Finlay Jewelry
will be required to return or repurchase the outstanding gold at
the prevailing gold rate in effect on that date. For financial state-
ment purposes, the consigned gold is not included in merchandise
inventories on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets and,
therefore, no related lability has been recorded. At February 1,
2003, Finlay Jewelry was in compliance with all of its covenants
under the Gold Consignment Agreement.
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The following tables summarize the Company’s contractual and commercial obligations which may have an impact on future

liquidity and the availability of capital resources, as of February 1, 2003 (dollars in thousands):

Payments Due By Period

(1) Represents future minimum payments under noncancellable operating leases.

Contractual Obligations ) Total Less Than 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years After 5 Years.
Senior Notes (due 2'008) ................................. $150,000 $ — 8 — 3 — $150,000
Senior Debentures (due 2008) . .. ... . ... ... o oL 75,000 — — — 75,000
Operating leasest®) .. .. . L 11,011 1,974 3,925 3,834 1,278
Total. $236,011 § 1,974 $3,925 $3,834 $226,278

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

(1) There were no borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement at February
outstanding balance as of April 29, 2003 was $25.9 million.
(2) Represents amount outstanding at February 1, 2003,

Finlay believes that, based upon current operations, anticipated
growth, and continued availability under the Revolving Credit
Agreement, Finlay Jewelry will, for the foreseeable future, be
able to meet its debt service and anticipated working capital obli-
gations, and to make distributions to the Company sufficient to
permit the Company to meet its debt service obligations and to
pay certain other expenses as they come due. No assurances,
however, can be given that Finlay Jewelry’s current level of oper-
ating results will continue or improve or that Finlay Jewelry’s
income from operations will continue to be sufficient to permit
Finlay Jewelry and the Company to meet their debt service and
other obligations. Currently, Finlay Jewelry’s principal financing
arrangements restrict annual distributions from Finlay Jewelry to
the Company to 0.25% of Finlay Jewelry’s net sales for the pre-
ceding fiscal year and also allow distributions to the Company to
enable it to make interest payments on the Senior Debentures.

-Other dividends and distributions, including those required to

fund stock or bond repurchases, are subject to Finlay’s satisfaction
of certain restrictive covenants. The amounts required to satisty
the aggregate of Finlay Jewelry’s interest expense totaled $16.8
million and $19.0 million for 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The Company has an employment agreement with one senior
executive which provides for a minimum salary level as well .
as. incentive compensation based on meeting specific financial
goals. Such agreement has a remaining term of two years and
has a remaining aggregate minimum value of $1,975,000 as of
February 1, 2003. '

In December 2000, the Company announced that its Board of
Directors had approved a stock repurchase program to acquire up
to $20 million of outstanding Common Stock. The Company
may, at the discretion of management, purchase its Common
Stock, from time to time through September 29, 2003 under the

Other Commercial Commitments Total ‘Less Than 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years After 5 Years
Revolving Credit Agreement (due 2008)(D . ... .. ... ... ..., ... 3 — 5 — $ — $ — $ —
Gold Consignment Agreement (due 2005/, ... ... ... ... 49,500 49,500 — — —
Letters of credit . . .. o oo 7,250 7,000 —_ —_— 250
TOtal . e e § 56,750 £56,500 5 — $ — 8 250

1, 2003. The average amount outstanding during 2002 was $61.2 million and the

stock repurchase program. The extent and timing of repurchases
will depend upon general business and market conditions, stock
prices, availability under the Revolving Credit Facility, compliance
with certain restrictive covenants and its cash position and require-
ments going forward. As of February 1, 2003, the Company
repurchased 1,332,942 shares for $13.8 million.

In March 2002, the Company implemented a new merchan-
dising and inventory control system and a point-of-sale system
for its Departments. These systems will serve to support future
growth of the Company as well as provide improved analysis and
reporting capabilifies and more timely sales and inventory infor-
mation to facilitate merchandising solutions. Additionally, these
systems will provide the foundation for future productivity and
expense control initiatives. At February 1, 2003, a total of §22.1
million has been expended for software and implementation costs
and is included in Deferred charges and other assets.

From time to time, Finlay enters into futures contracts, such as
forwards, based upon the anticipated sales of gold product in order
to hedge against the risk arising from its payment arrangements.
At February 1, 2003, the Company had two open positions in
futures contracts for gold, which expire during 2003, totaling
4,000 fine troy ounces, valued at $1.4 million. There can be no
assurance that these hédging techniques will be successful or that
hedging transactions will not adversely affect the Company’s
results of operations or financial position. ]

In February 2001, Federated announced its plans to close its
Stern’s division in which Finlay operated 23 Departments. Finlay
closed the majority of the Stern’s Departments during the second
quarter of 2001. Subsequently, Federated converted the majority
of the Departments to a host store in which Finlay does not
operate. Finlay recorded a charge of approximately $1.0 million
related to the write-off of fixed assets and employee severance.




During 2001, Federated acquired the Liberty House department
store chain and converted those Departments to a host store in

which Finlay does not operate. Finlay -operated in all twelve of
the Liberty House department stores through mid-November
2001. Finlay recorded a charge of approximately $0.2 million
related to the write-off of fixed assets and employee severance.
During 2002, sales were reduced by approximately $31.0 million
compared to the priror year as a result of the closings of Stern’,
Liberty House and another smaller host store group. ©

During 1998, Sonab, the Company’s European leased jewelry
department subsidiary, began to experience lower sales trends

due to the transition from a promotional pricing strategy to an -

everyday low price strategy. This change was made as a result of
Sonab reassessing its pricing policy following certain local French
court decisions. The adverse impact of such change continued
through 1999. As a result of the foregoing, on January 3, 2000,.
Sonab sold the majority of its assets for approximately $9.9 mil-
lion. After the sale, the buyer operated more than 80 locations

previously included in Sonab’s 130-location base in France. The

remaining Departments were closed. All of Sonab’s employees,
excluding those that were hired by the buyer, were involuntary
terminated, including sales associates, supervisors and corporate
personnel. The Company recorded a pre-tax charge in the fourth
quarter of 1999 of $28.6 million, or $1.62 per share on a diluted
basis after-tax. The charge included the write down of inventory
and fixed assets, employee payroll and severance costs, realization
of foreign exchange losses and other close-down costs. As of
February 1, 2003, the Company’s exit plan has been completed
with the exception of certain employee litigation and other legal
matters. During the fourth qudrter of 2002, the Company
revised its original estimate of closure expenses to reflect its
remaining liability, and as a result recorded a credit of $1.4 mil-
lion. To date, the Company has charged a total of $26.4 million
against its revised estimate of $27.2 million. The Company does
not believe future operating results or h’quidiry‘will be materially.
impacted by any remaining payments. "

SEASONALITY
Finlay’s business is highly seasonal, with a significant portion of
its sales and incomé from operations generated during the fourth
quarter of each year, which includes the year-end holiday season.
The fourth quarter accounted for an average of approximately
41% of Finlay’s sales and approximately 79% of its income from
operations for 2002, 2001 and 2000. Finlay has typically experi-
enced net losses in the first three quarters of its fiscal year.
During these periods, working capital requirements have been
funded by borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement.
Accordingly, the results for any of the first three quarters of any
" given fiscal year, taken individually or in the aggregate, are
not indicative of annual results. See Note 10 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company.

The Company’s Sales and Income from operations for each
quarter of 2002, 2001 and 2000 were as follows. For 2002, the
quarterly financial data has been revised to reflect the Company’s
retroactive adoption of EITF 02-16 to the beginning of 2002.

Fiscal Quarter

(Dollars i’ thousands) (Unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth
2002:
Sales. .......... $187,365 $187,130  $168,359  $387,855
Income from )
operations . . . . . 5,730 4,821 513 53,640
2001:
Sales. . ......... 193,249 196,167 175,292 388,081
Income from
operations . . . . . - 4,125 5,525 1,624 47,933
2000 Z
Sales. .......... 178,614 211,229 189,728 420,549
Income from
operations .. . . . 4,338 10,042 5,431 56,475
INFLATION

The effect of inflation on Finlay’s results of operations has not
been material in the periods discussed.

SPECIAL MOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS

This Annual Report includes “forward-looking statements™
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and
Section 21E of the Exchange Act. All statements other than state-
ments of historical information provided herein are forward-
looking statements and may contain information about financial
results, economic conditions, trends and known uncertainties.
The forward-looking statements contained herein are subject to
certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results, per-
formances or achievements to differ materially from those
reflected in, or implied by, the forward-looking statements.
Factors that might cause such a difference include, but are not
limited to, those discussed under “Management’s Discussion and ‘
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”, as
well as trends in the general economy in the United States, low
or negative growth in the economy or in the financial markets
which reduce discretionary spending on goods perceived to be
luxury items, attacks or threats of attacks by terrorists or war
which may negatively impact the economy and/or the financial
markets and reduce discretionary spending on such goods, com- -
petition in the retail jewelry business, the seasonality of the retail
jewelry business, the Company’s ability to increase comparable
department sales and to open new departments, the Company’s
dependence on or loss of certain host store relationships, particu-
larly with respect to May and Federated, due to the concentra-
tion of sales generated by such host stores, the impact of any host
store bankruptcy, the impact of declining mall traffic levels, the
availability to the Company of alternate sources of merchandise
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sﬁpply in the case of an abrupt loss of any significant supplier, the
Company’ ability to continue to obtain substantial amounts of
merchandise on consignment, the impact of fluctuations in gold
and diamond prices, Finlay Jewelry’s continuation of its Gold
Consignment Agreement, the Company’s compliance with appli-
cable contractual covenants, the impact of future claims and legal
actions arising in the ordinary course of business, the impact of
recent accounting developments, the Company’s dependence on
key officers, the Company’ ability to integrate future acquisi-
tions into its existing business, the Company’s high degree of
leverage and the availability to the Company of financing and
credit on favorable terms and changes in regulatory requirements
which are applicable to the Company’s business. Other such factors
include the ability of the Company to complete the repurchases
contemplated under its stock repurchase program, the adequacy
of Finlay’s working capital to complete the repurchases, the avail-
ability and liquidity of the Company’s Common Stock, and over-
all market conditions for the Company’s Common Stock.

 Readers are cautioned not to rely on these forward-looking
statements, which reflect management’s analysis, judgment, belief
or expectation only as of the date hereof. The Company under-
takes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking state-
ments to reflect events or circumstances that arise after the date
hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, [n
addition to the disclosure contained herein, readers should care-
fully review any disclosure of risks and uncertainties contained in
other documents the Company files or has filed from time to
time with the Commission pursuant to the Exchange Act.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK ‘

The Company is exposed to market risk through the interest
rate on its borrowings under the Revolving Credic Agreement,
which has a variable interest rate. Based on the average amounts
outstanding under the Revolving Credit Agreement for 2002, a
100 basis point change in interest rates would have resulted in an
increase in interest expense of approximately $600,000 in 2002,
In seeking to minimize the risks from interest rate fluctuations,
the Company manages exposures through its regular operating
and financing activities. In addition, the majority of the
Company’s borrowings are under fixed rate arrangements,
as described in Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The jewelry industry in general is affected by fluctuations in
the prices of precious metals and precious and semi-precious
stones. The availability and prices of gold, diamonds and other
precious metals and precious and semi-precious stones may be
influenced by cartels, political instability in exporting countries
and inflation. Shortages of these materials or sharp changes in
their prices could have a material adverse. effect on the
Company’s results of operations or financial condition. The
Company enters into forward contracts for the purchase of golci
to hedge the risk of gold price fluctuations for future sales of
gold consignment merchandise. The Company does not enter

- into forward contracts or other financial instruments for specula-

tion or trading purposes. The fair value of gold under the forward
contracts was $1.5 million at February 1, 2003.
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The accompanying notes are an integral part'of these consolidated financial statements.

Year Ended
February 1, February 2, Februafy 3,
(In thousands, except share and per share data) 2003 2002 2001
Sales . L $930,709 $952,789 $1,000,120
Costofsales. ................. e 450,532 479,255 496,291
Gross Margin : . ..........ooooiiii .. I 480,177 473,534 503,829
Selling, general and administrative expenses . . . ... ... .. ... 399,339 394,238 409,994
Credit associated with the sale and closure of Sonab . ... ... .. ... ... ... ..... (1,432) . — —
Depreciation and amortization . . . ... ... .. 17,566 20,089 17,549
Income from operations. . . .. ... . [, 64,704 59,207 76,286 .
Interest eXpense, Net . . .. ... ...ttt e 24,876 26,937 30,057
Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change. . ... ... 39,828 32,270 46,229
Provision for INCOMeE taxes. . . . . o vt v i e e 15,580 13,735 19,708
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change .. .................. 24,248 18,535 26,521
Cumulative effect of accounting change, netof tax. . .. ......... ... ... ... .. 17,209 — —
Net Income . . ..ot [, P $ 7,039 % 18,535 $ 26,521
Net income per share applicable to common shares:
Basic net income per share:
Income per share before cumulative effect of accounting change. . . . . e § 258 $ 182 $ 2.54
Cumulative effect of accounting change, netoftax .. ................... (1.83) — —
Basic net income pershare . .. ... ... ... . B $ 0.75 $ 1.82 $ 2.54
Diluted net income per share: ‘
Income per share before cumulative effect of accounting change ............ $ 251 $ 180 $ 2.52
Cumulamve effect of accounting change, net of TAX ot e (1.78) — —
Diluted net income pershare ... ..... ... e $ 073 $§ 1.80 $ 2.52
Weighted average shares and share equwalents outstandmg ) ‘
BaSiC o o I 9,416,218 10,180,441 10,421,380
Diluted. . .. .. e e 9,683,052 10,301,030 10,507,627
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Year Ended

February 1,

February 2,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

(In thousands, except share and per share data) 2003 2002
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents. . . ... ... R S S $ 69,331 $ 49,369
Accounts receivable—department stOres. . . . . .. e : 19,985 17,505
Other receivables. . .. ..ot 30,880 25,953
Merchandise inventories. . ... ............. P 263,544 304,508
Prepaid expenses and other. . . ... . ... .. L 3,236 2,365
Deferred income taxes . .. ....... R N 9,858 —
Total curreﬁt B85S . .t e e e e e e e 396,834 399,700
Fixed assets: v
. Building, equipment, fixtures and leasehold improvements. . .. ... ... ... o oo oL 120,946 119,743
Less=—accumulated depreciation and amortization . . ... ... .. ... Lo 50,575 47,717
O 70,371 72,026
Deferred charges and other assets, net . . ............ ... .. .... P 22,234 22,081
Goodwill . . . e . 91,046 91,046
Total as8EtS. » . v v o e e $580,485 $584,853
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities: ‘ _
Accounts payable—trade. . ... .. ... ... .. A e $113,277 $132,174
Accrued liabilities: )
Accrued salaries and benefits . . . . ... ... L e B ) 17,734 19,369
Accrued miscellanecus taxes . . . . ... ... 6,842 6,522
Accrued INLETESt. . . . . . o 5,421 5,284
Deferred income . . .. .. ... 10,493 —
Other . . oo 14,814 13,871
CIncome taxes payable . L L. e 19,263 16,943
T Deferred INCOME TAXES . .« o o o oot e e e — 3,001
Total current Habiliies . . . .. oo oo e -+ 187,844 197,164
Long-term debt ... ... e e 225,000 225,000
Deferred income taxes. . . .............. L e e 18,400 13,260
Other non-current liabilities. . . . ... .. ... .. ... . . . . . e 205 222
Total labilities . . . .. ... . . AR 431,449 435,646
Stockholders’ equity:
Common Stock, par value $.01 per share; authorized 25,000,000 shares; .
issued and outstanding 9,300,638 and 9,946,623 shares, respectively. . ... .. ... ... ... .. 106 105
Additional paid-incapital . .. .. .. ... L o oo o I F 79,680 78,728
Retained €armings . . . . ..o st e e 83,597 76,558
Unamortized restricted stock compensation . .. .. ... ... e (609) (913)
Accumulated other comprehensive income. . . .. .. .. L 55 96
Less treasury stock, at COSL. . o oo it e e (13,793) (5,367)
Total stockholders’ equity . . ... .. ... e 149,036 149,207
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity .. ... ... ... .. R $580,485 $584,853




Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity and

ote

FINLAY ENTERPRISES,

INC.

Comprehensive Income

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
’ Income/
Common Stock Additional Retained Unamortized Total
) Number Paid-in Earnings  Restricted Stock Treasury  Stockholders’ . Comprehensive

(In thousands, except share data) of Shares Amount Capital (Deficit) Compensation Stock Equity Income

Balance, January 29, 2000 . .. ... 10,416,353 §104 $77,194 $31,502 $ — $ —  §$108,800 :
Netincome .............. = — — 26,521 — — 26,521 $26,521.
Comprehensive inéqmc ...... §26,521
Exercise of stock options . . . . . 12,633 — 138 — — — 138
Purchase of treasury stock . . . . {92,000) — — — — (1,119 (1,119)

Balance, February 3, 2001. . .. .. 10,336,986 104 77,332 58,023 — (1,119 134,340 .
Netincome .............. — — — 18,535 — — 18,535 $18,535
Fair value of gold .

forward contracts at ‘

February 4,2001. ... ... .. — — — — 24 — 24 24
Change in fair value of gold

forward contracts. ... ... .. — — — - 72 — 72 72
Comprehensive income. . . . .. ' $18,631
Exercise of stock options . . . .. 16,967 — 178 — — — 178
Issuance of restricted stock and

amortization of restricted

stock compensation . .. . ... 100,000 1 1,218 — (913) — 306
Purchase of treasury stock . . . . (507,330) — = — — (4,248) (4,248)

Balance, February 2, 2002. . .. .. 9,946,623 105 78,728 76,558 (817) (5,367) 149,207
Netincome .............. — — —_ 7,039 - — 7,039 § 7,039
Change in fair value of gold

forward contracts. . . ... ... — — — — 41) — (41) (41)
Comprehensive income.. . . . .. $ 6,998
Exercise of stock options . . . . . 87,627 i 952 — — — 953
Amortization of restricted

stock compensation . . ... .. — — — — 304 — 304
Purchase of treasury stock . . .. (733,612) - . — — — (8,426) (8,426}

9,300,638  §106  $79,680 $(554) $(13,793)  $149,036

“Balance, February 1, 2003. . ..

$83,597

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended
. February 1, February 2, February 3,
(In thousands) 2003 2002 2001 1

Cash Flows from Operating Activities : ‘

Netincome ... .................... e $ 7,039 $ 18,535 $ 26,521

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided from operating activities: ‘
Cumulative effect of accounting change . . . ... ... . ... L 17,209 — —
Depreciation and amortization. . . . . . . . S 17,566 . 20,089 17,549
- Amortization of deferred financing costs. . . ... . ... ... oL 1,246 1,231 1,221
" Amortization of restricted stock compensation ... ... I 304 306 —
" Credit associated with the sale and closure of Sonab. . . . . .. P ’ (1,432) —. —
Deferred inCome taxes . . . . . . oottt 5,140 1,760 © 1,098
COther, met. ... 258 2,606 470

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts and other receivables. .. . ... ... ... . ... " (7,407) 10,310 (9,165)
(Increase) decrease in merchandise inventories. . . ... ... ... ........ . 24,348 22,003 (30,892)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other. . .. ................. (871) 515 (798)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . ... ..... .. (16,945) (38,050) 20,440
Increase (decrease) in deferred income taxes . ... .................... (1,146)- (96) 1,416
Net Cash Provided from Operating Activides .. ................. 45,309 39,209 27,860
Cash Flows from Investing Activities »

Purchases of equipment, fixtures and leasehold improvements . .............. . (12,489) (13,850) (14,120)
Deferred charges and other, net . ... ... .. . . . (3,261) (4,347) (4,022)
Proceeds from sale of Sonab assets. . ... ... ... .. L e — 765 7,592
Payment for purchase-of ].B. Rudolph.assets. . .. ... .. .o oL — — (20,605)
Proceeds from sale of outlet assets . . . . ... .. ... — — 752
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities . . . . . e (15,7590) (17,432) (30,403)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities o
Proceeds from revolving credit facility. . ... .. ... L 654,459 726,915 743,852

Principal payments on revolving credit facility .. .. ... ... .. o L. (654,459) - (726,915) (743,852}

Capitalized fInancing costs . . . ... ..o (1,875) — —_

Purchase of treasury stock. . ... ... .. S (8,426) (4,248) (1,119)

Stock options exercised . .. ... L S 704 178 138

’ Net Cash Used in Financing Activities . ... ... ................ (9,597) (4,070) (981)

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash..................... — . — 79

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents.' ................ 19,962 17,707 (3,445)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year. ... . ... ... .. [P 49,369 31,662 35,107

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year . . S R $ 69,331 $ 49,369 $§ 31,662
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Interest paid & . . . ... $ 23,493 $ 25,692 $ 28,887

Income taxes paid . . ... .. ... L Lo L R $ 9,001 $ 14,698 $ 4,668

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

MOTE 1—OCRGANIZATION OF THE COMPAWNY AND
SIGMIFICANT TRAMSACTIONS

Finlay Enterprises, Inc. (the “Company”), a Delaware corpo-
ration, conducts business through its wholly owned subsidiary,
Finlay Fine Jewelry Corporation and its wholly owned
subsidiaries {“Finlay Jewelry”). References to “Finlay” mean
collectively, the Company and Finlay Jewelry. Finlay 1s a retailer
of fine jewelry products and operates leased fine jewelry depart-
ments in department stores throughout the United States. All ref-
erences heréin to leased departments refer to departments
operated pursuant to license agreements or other arrangements
with host department stores.

On January 22, 2003, Finlay Jewelry’s revolving credit agree-
ment with General Electric Capital Corporation (“G.E. Capital”)
and certain other lenders was amended and restated (the “Revolv-
ing Credit Agreement”). The Revolving Credit Agreement,
which matures in January 2008, provides Finlay Jewelry with a
senior secured revolving line of credit up to $225.0 million (the
“Revolving Credit Facility”). ‘

NMOTE 2—SIGN!FICANT ACCOUNMTING POLICIES

Consolidation. The accompanying consolidated financial state-
ments include the accounts of the Company and its wholly
owned subsidiary, Finlay Jewelry. Intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of estimates. The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make esti-
mates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
may differ from those estimates.

Fiscal year. The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Saturday
. closest to January 31. References to 2003, 2002, 2001 and 2000
relate to the fiscal years ended on January 31, 2004, February 1,
2003, February 2, 2002 and-February 3, 2001. Each of the fiscal
years includes 52 weeks except 2000, which includes 53 weeks,

Merchandise inventories. Consolidated inventories are stated at
the lower of cost or market determined by the last-in, first-out
(“LIFO”) method. Inventory is reduced for estimated obsolescence

or unmarketable inventory equal to the difference between the.

cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon
assumptions about future demand and market conditions.

The cost to Finlay of gold merchandise sold on consignment,
which typically varies with the price of gold, is not fixed until
the merchandise is sold. Finlay, at times, enters into futures con-
tracts, such as forwards, based upon the anticipated sales of gold
product in order to hedge against the risk of gold price fluctuas
tions. Such contracts typically have durations ranging from one

to nine months. Changes in the market value of futures contracts
are accounted for as an addition to, or reduction from, the inven-
tory cost. For the years ended February 1, 2003, February 2,
2002 and Februiry 3, 2001, the gain/loss on open futures con-
tracts was not material. At both February 1, 2003 and February 2,
2002, the Company had several open positions in futures -con-
tracts for gold totaling 4,000 fine troy ounces and 17,500 fine
troy ounces, respectively, valued at $1.4 million and $4.8 million,
respectively. The fair value of gold under such contracts was $1.5
million and $4.9" million at February 1, 2003 and February 2,
2002, respectively.

Hedging. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS™) No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities”, as amended, establishes accounting and
repbrting standards for derivative instruments, including certain
derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for
hedging activities. Under SFAS No. 133, all derivatives, whether
designated in hedging relationships or not, are required to be
recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. SFAS No. 133 defines
requirements for designation and documentation of hedging rela-
tionships, as well.as ongoing effectiveness assessments, which must
be met in order to qualify for hedge accounting. For a derivative
that does not qualify as a hedge, changes in fair value would be
recorded in earnings immediately. The Company has designated
its existing derivative instruments, consisting of gold forward
contracts, as cash flow hedges. For derivative instruments desig-
nated as cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the change in
the fair value of the derivative is recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income, a separate component of stockholders’
equity, and is reclassified into cost of sales when the offsetting
effects of the hedged transaction affects earnings. Changes in the
fair value of the derivative atiributable to hedge ineffectiveness
are recorded in earnings immediately. The Company adopted
SFAS No. 133 on February 4, 2001 and recorded $24,000 as a
cumulative transition adjustment (increasing other comprehensive
income). At February 1, 2003, the fair value of the gold forward
contracts resulted in the recognition of an asset of $93,600. The
amount recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income
of $35,000, net of tax, is expected to be reclassified into earnings

- during 2003.

The Company has documented all relationships between
hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk manage-
ment objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedge trans-
actions. The Company also assesses, both at the hedge’ inception
and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in
cash flows of hedged items. The Company believes that the des-
ignated hedges will be highly effective and that the related hedge
accounting will not have a material impact on the Company’s
results of operations.
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Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization
are computed by the straight-line method over the estimated use-
ful lives of the fixed assets ranging from three to thirty-nine years.

Software development costs. Software development costs have
been accounted for in accordance with Statement of Position
(the “SOP”) No. 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer
Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use”. The SOP
states that software development costs that are incurred in the
preliminary project stage are expensed ‘as incurred. Once the
specified criteria of the SOP have been met, internal and external
direct costs incurred in developing or obtaining computer soft-
ware as well as related interest costs are capitalized. Training and
data conversion costs are expensed as incurred. In addition, costs
incurred for the routine operation and maintenance of manage-
ment information systems and software are expensed as incurred.
‘Amortization is computed by the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the software ranging from three to
severn years. i

Included in Deferred charges and other assets in the accompa-
nying Consolidated Balance Sheets at February 1, 2003 and
February 2, 2002, are gross capitalized software costs of
$27,526,000 and $24,254,000, respectively, and accumulated
amortization of $10,300,000 and $6,564,000, respectively.

Goodwill. On February 3, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. This Statement
requires that goodwill no longer be amortized over its estimated
useful life but tested for impairment on an annual basis, During
the first quarter of 2002, a transitional goodwill impairment test
was performed and the Company determined that there was no
impairment of goodwill. Further, as required by SFAS No. 142,
an annual impairment test was completed at the end of fiscal
2002 and the Company determined that there was no impair-
ment. The following is a reconciliation of reported Net income
and Net income per share adjusted to reflect the impact of the

discontinuance of goodwill amortization for 2001 and 2000. The
Company’s actual 2002 Net income and Net income per share-
are shown for comparative purposes.

Fiscal Years Ended

February 1, February 2,  February 3,

(In thousands, except per share data} 2003 2002 2001
Net income:
Reported net income . . .. .. .. $7,039 $18,535 $26,521
Add: Goodwill amortization. . . . —_ 3,753 3,711
Less: Tax impact of deductible

goodwill. . . ............. — (320) (303)
Adjusted net income . . .. .. A $7,039 $21,968 $29,929
Basic net income per share:
Reported net income per share . . $ 0.75 $ 1.82 $ 2.54
Add: Goodwill amortization,

netoftax . .............. — 0.34 0.33
Adjusted net income per share . . $ 0.75 § 216 § 287
Diluted net income per share:
Reported net income per share. . $ 0.73 $ 180 $ 252
Add: Goodwill amortization, i

netoftax ............... —_ 0.33 0.32
Adjusted net income per share . . $ 0.73 $ 213 $ 284

Net income per share. Net income per share has been com-
puted in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share”.
Basic and diluted net income per share were calculated using the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during each
period, with options to purchase common stock, par value §0.01
per share (“Common Stock™), included in diluted net income
per share, using the treasury stock method, to the extent that

- such options were dilutive. Due to the antidilutive impact on net

income per share, 474,634, 1,159,569 and 884,400 options were
not included in the weighted average shares outstanding for
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The following is an analysis of
the differences between basic and diluted net income per share:

Fiscal Year Ended

February 1, February 2, February 3,
2003 2002 2001
Number Per Number Per Number Per
of Shares Share of Shares Share of Shares Share
Weighted average shares outstanding . . . .. ............. 9,416,218 $0.75 10,180,441 $1.82 10,421,380 $2.54
Dilutive stock options . .. ... ... .. 266,834 (0.92) 120,589 - (0.02) 86,247 (0.02)
‘Weighted average shares and share equivalents ... ... ...... 9,683,052 $ 0.73 10,301,030 % 1.80 10,507,627 $2.52

P ]
[N




Debt issuance costs. Debt issuance costs are amortized over the
term of the related debt agreements using the straight line method,
which approximates that of the effective interest method. Net
deferred debt issuance costs totaled $4,532,000 at February 1, 2003
and 84,072,000 at February 2, 2002. The debt issuance costs are
reflected as a component of Deferred charges and other assets, net,
in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. Amortization
of debt issuance costs for 2002, 2001 and 2000 totaled
$1,229,000, $1,231,000 and $1,221,000, respectively, and have
been recorded as a component of Interest expense, net, in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Revenue recognition. The Company recognizes revenue upon
the sale of merchandise, either owned or consigned, to its cus-
tomers, net of anticipated returns. The provision for sales returns
s based on the Company’ historical return rate.

Cost of sales. ‘Cost of sales includes the cost of merchandise
sold, repair expense, shipping, shrinkage and inventory losses.
Buying and occupancy costs such as lease fees are not included in
Cost of sales and are reflected in Selling, general and adrninistra-
tive expenses (“SG&A”) in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

Advertising costs. All costs associated with advertising are
expensed in the month that the advertising takes place. For 2002,
2001 and 2000, gross advertising expenses were $48,975,000,
$53,029,000 and $59,434,000, respectively, and are included
im SG&A in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

Vendor allowances. The Company receives allowances from its
vendors through a variety of programs and arrangements, includ-
ing cooperative advertising. The allowances are generally
intended to offset the Company’s costs of promoting, advertising
and selling the vendors’ products in its departments. Vendor
allowances are recognized as a reduction of cost of sales or SG&A
when the purpose for which the vendor funds were intended to
be used has been fulfilled. Accordingly, a reduction or increase
in vendor allowances has an inverse impact on cost of sales
and/or SG&A. _ ‘

In March 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s

"used to offset such costs.

(“FASB”) Emerging Issues Task Force ‘(“EITF”) finalized Issue -

No. 02-16, “Accounting by a Customer {Including a Reseller)
for Cash Consideration Received from a Vendor” (“EITF 02-16").
EITF 02-16 addresses the accounting treatment for vendor
allowances and provides that cash consideration received from a
vendor should be presumed to be a reduction of the prices of the
vendors’ product and should therefore be shown as a reduction

in the purchase price of the merchandise. Further, these

allowances should be recognized as a reduction in cost of sales
when the related product is sold. To the extent that the cash con-
sideration represents a reimbursement of a specific, incremental
and identifiable cost, then those vendor allowances should be

In accordance with EITF 02-16, the Company recorded a
cumulative effect of accounting change as of February 3, 2002,
the date of adoption, that decreased net income for 2002 by
$17.2 million, net of tax, or $1.78 per share, on a diluted basis.
As of February 3, 2002, deferred vendor allowances totaled
(i) $17,129,000 for owned merchandise, and {ii) $12,306,000 for
merchandise received on consignment. As of February 1, 2003,‘
the Company’s fiscal year end, deferred vendor allowances
totaled (1) $18,452,000 for owned merchandise, which is
included as an offset to Merchandise inventories on the 2002
Consolidated Balance Sheet, and (ii) $10,493,000 for merchan-
dise received on consignment, which is included as Deferred
income on the 2002 Consolidated Balance Sheet. In 2002, this
change resulted in the reclassification of vendor allowances of
$20.0 million, which had previously been accounted for as a
reduction to SG&A, to now reduce cost of sales and conse-
quently, increase gross margin. The Company’s 2002 unaudited
quarterly financial data has been revised to reflect this change in
accounting method (refer to Note 10). The adoption of EITF
02-16 is not .expected to have a material impact on the financial
position or results of operations of the Company in 2003.

During 2001 and 2000, the Company recorded its vendor
allowances as an offset to gross advertising expenses, which is
included in SG&A on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
For 2001 and 2000, the unaudited pro forma impact of the adop-
tion of EITF 02-16, as if it had occurred prior to 2000, was to
decrease cost of sales and increase SG&A by $20,374,000 and
$23,665,000, respectively. For both years, Net income and Net
income per share would not have been materially different.

Cash equivalents. The Company considers cash on hand,
deposits in binks and deposits in money market funds as cash and
cash equivalents.

Fair value of financial instruments. Cash, accounts receivable,
short-term borrowings, accounts payable and accrued liabilities
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements at fair value
due to the short-term maturity of these instruments. Marketable
securities are recorded in the consolidated financial statements at
current market value, which approximates cost. The fair value of
the Company’s debt and off-balance sheet financial instruments
are disclosed in Note 4 and in Merchandise inventories above.
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Stock-based compensation. In December 2002, the FASB issued
SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—
Transition and Disclosure” which became effective in 2002. This
Statement amends SFAS No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based
- Compensation”, to provide alternative methods of transition for
an entity that voluntarily changes to the fair value method of
accounting for stock-based compeﬁsation. The Company has
elected to continue to recognize stock-based compensation using
the intrinsic value method and has incorporated the additional
disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 148. Pro forma net income
as well as basic and diluted earnings per share are disclosed in
Note 5. Deferred stock-based compensation is amortized using
the straight-line method over the vesting period.

Accounting for the impairment of long-lived assets. SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets”, which became effective for the Company in 2002,

addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment

or disposal of long-lived assets. This statement extends the
reporting requirements to include reporting separately as discon-
tinued operations, components of an entity that have either been
disposed of or classified as held-for-sale. The adoption of SFAS
No. 144 did not have a material impact on the financial position
or results of operations of the Company.

Accounting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities. In
June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities”, which addresses
financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit
or disposal activities. SFAS No. 146 requires that liabilities for
costs associated with exit or disposal activities be recognized
when the liabilides are incurred. This statement also establishes
fair value as the objective for initial measurement of the liabilities.
The provisions of SFAS No. 146 are effective for exit or disposal
activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002. The adop-
tion of SFAS No. 146 is not expected to have a material impact
on the financial position of results of operations of the Company.

Accounting standard to be adopted in 2003. In April 2002, the
FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statement No.
4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB No. 13, and Technical
Corrections”, which amends certain existing authoritative pro-
nouncements to make various technical corrections, clarify
meanings, or describe their applicability under changed condi-
tions. Additionally, the statement provides that gains and losses
from debt extinguishment are not automatically shown as an
" extraordinary item on a company’s statement of operations. The
provisions of SFAS No. 145 are effective for fiscal years begin-
ning after May 15, 2002. The adoption of SFAS No. 145 is not

expected to have a material impact on the financial position or
results of operations of the Company.

Seasonality. ‘A significant portion of Finlay’s revenues are
generated in the fourth quarter due to the seasonality of the retail
industry. As such, results for interim periods are not indicative
of annual results. Refer to Note 10 for unaudited quarterly finan-
cial data.

NMOTE 3—MERCHANNSE INVENTORIES
Merchandise inventories consisted of the following:

February 1, February 2,
(In thousands) 2003 2002
Jewelry goods—rings, watches and
other fine jewelry (first-in, first-out
(“FIFO) basis) .. ... ... .. o §275,339 $314,473
Less: Excess of FIFO cost over. LIFO
inventory value . . . .. T, 11,795 9,965
$263,544 $304,508

In accordance with EITFE 02-16, Merchandise inventories has
been reduced by $18.5 million as of February 1, 2003 to reflect
the vendor allowances as a reduction in the cost of the merchan-
dise. The LIFO method had the effect of decreasing income
before income taxes in 2002, 2001 and 2000 by $2,342,000
(excluding a cumulative LIFO benefit of $512,000 relating to the
adoption of EITF 02-16), $3,783,000 and $1,801,000, respec-
tively. Finlay determines its LIFQ inventory value by utilizing
selected producer price indices published for jewelry and watches
by the Bureau of Labor Statistics.

Approximately $359,676,000 and $359,729,000 at February 1,
2003 and February 2, 2002, respectively, of merchandise received
on consignment is not included in Merchandise inventories and
Accounts payable—trade in the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

Finlay Jewelry is party to an amended and restated gold con-
signment agreement (as amended, the “Gold Consignment Agree-
ment”), which enables Finlay Jewelry to receive consignment
merchandise by providing gold, or otherwise making payment,
to certain vendors. While the merchandise involved remains
consigned, title to the gold content of the merchandise transfers
from the vendors to the gold consignor.

Effective September 30, 2002, Finlay Jewelry amended the
Gold Consignment Agreement to extend the term to July 31,
2005, and to permit Finlay Jewelry to obtain up to the lesser of
(i) 165,000 fine troy ounces or (i) $50.0 million worth of gold,
subject to a formula as prescribed by the Gold Consignment




Agreement. At February 1, 2003 and February 2, 2002, amounts
outstanding under the Gold Consignment Agreement totaled
134,785 and 127,519 fine troy ounces, respectively, valued at
approximately $49.5 million and $36.0 million, respectively. In
the event this agreement is terminated, Finlay Jewelry will be
required to return or repurchase the outstanding gold at the pre-
vailing gold rate in effect on that date. For financial statement
purposes, the consigned gold is not included in Merchandise
inventories on the Company’s Consclidated Balance Sheets and,
therefore, no related liability has been recorded.

Under the Gold Consignment Agreement, Finlay Jewelry is
required to pay a daily consignment fee on the dollar equivalent
of the fine gold value of the ounces of gold consigned there-~
under. The daily consignment fee is based on a floating rate
which, as of February 1; 2003 and February 2, 2002, was
approximately 2.8% and 3.0%, respectively, per annum. In addi-
tion, Finlay is required to pay a fee of 0.5% if the amount of gold
consigned has a value equal to or less than $12.0 million.
Included in interest expense for the years ended February 1,
2003, February 2, 2002 and February 3, 2001 are consignment
fees of $1,153,000, $1,228,000 and $979,000, respectively.

In conjunction with the Gold Consignment Agreement,
Finlay Jéwelry granted the gold consignor a first priority per-
fected lien on, and a security interest in, specified gold jewelry of
participating vendors approved under the Gold Consignment
Agreement and a lien on proceeds and products of such jewelry
subject to the terms of an intercreditor agreement between the
gold consignor and G.E. Capital.

The Gold Consignment Agreement requires Finlay Jewelry to
comply with certain covenants, including restrictions on the
incurrence of certain indebtedness, the creation of liens, engag-
ing in transactions with affiliates and limitations on the payment
of dividends. In addition, the Gold Consignment Agreement also
contains various financial covenants, including minimum earnings
and fixed charge coverage ratio _réquirements and certain maxi-
mum debt limitations. Finlay Jewelry was in compliance with all

of its covenants as of and for the year ended February 1, 2003.

MOTE 4—SHORT AND LONG-TERM DEBT

The Company and Finlay Jewelry are parties to the Revolving
Credit Agreement with G.E. Capital and the other lenders
thereto which provides Finlay Jewelry with a Revolving Credit
Facility of up to $225.0 million. The Revolving Credit Facility

matures in January 2008, and allows borrowings based on an-

advance rate of (i) up to 85% of eligible accounts receivable and
(1) up to 60% of eligible owned inventory after taking into
account such reserves or offsets as G.E. Capital may deem appro-
priate (the “Borrowing Base™). Eligibility criteria are established

i
tG

by G.E. Capital, which retains the right to adjust the Borrowing
Base in its reasonable judgment by revising standards of eligibility,
establishing reserves and/or increasing or decreasing from time to
time the advance rates (except that any increase in the borrowing
base rate percentage shall require the consent of other lenders).
Finlay Jewelry is permitted to use up to $30 million of the
Revolving Credit Facility for the issuance of letters of credit
issued for the account of Finlay Jewelry. The outstanding revolv-
ing credit balance and letter of credit balance under the Revolving
Credit Agreement are required to be reduced each year to §50
million or less and $20 million or less, respectively, for a 30 con-
secutive day period (the “Balance Reduction Requirement”).
Funds available under the Revolving Credit Agreement are
utilized to finance working capital needs.

Amounts outstanding under the Revolving Credit Agreement
bear interest at a rate equal to, at Finlay’s option, (1) the Index
Rate (as defined) plus a margin ranging from zero to 1.0% or
(it) adjusted Eurodollar rate plus a margin ranging from 1.0% to
2.0%, in each case depending on the financial performance of the
Company. “Index Rate” is defined as the higher of {i) the prime
rate and (ii) the Federal Funds Rate plus 50 basis points per
annum. A letter of credit fee which could range from 1.0% to
2.0%, per annum, depending on the financial performance of the
Company, of the face amount of letters of credit guaranteed
under the Revolving Credit Agreement is payable monthly in
arrears. An unused facility fee on the average unused daily bal-
ance of the Revolving Credit Facility is payable monthly in
arrears equal to 0.375% per annum. Upon the occurrence (and
during the continuance) of an event of default under the
Revolving Credit Agreement, interest would accrue at a rate
which s 2% in excess of the rate otherwise applicable, and would
be payable upon demand.

The Revolving Credit Agreement is secured by a first priority
perfected security interest in all of Finlay Jewelry’s (and any sub-
sidiary’s) present and future tangible and intangible assets. The
Revolving Credit Agreement contains customary covevnants,
including limitations on or relating to capital expenditures, liens,
indebtedness, investments, mergers, acquisitions, affiliate transac-
tions, management compensation and the payment of dividends
and other restricted payments. The Revolving Credit Agreement
also contains various financial covenants, including minimum
earnings and fixed charge coverage ratio requirements and cer-
tain maximum debt limitations. Finlay was in compliance with all
of its covenants as of and for the year ended February 1, 2003.

There were no amounts outstanding at February 1, 2003 or
February 2, 2002 under the Revolving Credit Agreement. The
maximum amounts outstanding under the Revolving Credit
Agreement during 2002, 2001 and 2000 were $111,356,000,
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$125,231,000 and $155,559,000, respectively. The average

amounts outstanding for the same periods were $61,151,000,

_$80,753,000 and $96,612,000, respectively. The weighted aver- '

age interest rates were 3.9%, 5.5% and 8.6% for 2002, 2001 and
-2000, respectively. o
At February 1, 2003 and February 2, 2002, Finlay had letters
of credit outstanding totaling $7.3 million and $4.3 million,
respectively, which guarantee various trade activities. The con-~
tract amounts of the letters of credit approximate their fair value.
Long-term debt consisted of the following:

February 1, February 2,
(In thousands) 2003 2002
Senior Notes® . ... ....0........... $150,000  $150,000
Senior Debentures® . . ... ... 75,000 75,000

$225,000 $225,000

(a) On April 24, 1998, Finlay Jewelry issued 8%% Senior Notes due May 1, 2008
(the “Senior Notes”) with an aggregate principal amount of $150,000,000.
Interest on the Senior Notes is payable semi-annually on May 1 and

November 1 of each vyear, and commenced on November 1, 1998. Except in -

the case of certain equity offerings, the Senior Notes are not redeemable prior
to May 1, 2003. Thereafter, the Senior Nates will be redeemable, in whole or
in part, at the option of Finlay, at specified redemption prices plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, to the date of the redemption. In the event of a Change
of Control (as defined in the indenture relating to the Senior Notes (as
. amended, the “Senior Note Indenture™)), each holder of the Senior Notes will
have the right to require Finlay Jewelry to repurchase its Senior Notes at a pur-
chase price equal to 101% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued and
unpaid interest thereon to the repurchase date. The Senior Notes rank senior in
right of payment to all subordinated indebtedness of Finlay Jewelry and pari
passu in right of payment with all unsubordinated indebtedness of Finlay
Jewelry. However, because the Revolving Credit Agreement is secured by a
pledge of substantially all the assets of Finlay Jewelry, the Senior Notes are
effectively subordinated to the borrowings under the Revolving Credit
Agreement. The Senior Note Indenture contains restrictions relating to,
among other things, the payment of dividends, the making of certain invest-
ments or other restricted payments, the incurrence of additional indebtedness,.
the creation of certain liens, entering into transactions with affiliates, the
disposition of certain assets and engaging in mergers and consolidations.

The fair value of the Senior Notes at February 1, 2003, determined based on
market quotes, was approximately $140,438,000. -

(b) On April 24, 1998, the Company issued 9% Senior Debentures due May 1,
2008 (the."“Senior Debenzures”) with an aggregate principal amount of
$75,000,000. Interest on the Senior Debentures is payable semi-annually on
May 1 and November I of each year, and commenced on November 1, 1998.
Except in the case of certain equity offerings, the Senior Debentures are not
redeemable prior to May 1, 2003. Thereafter, the Senior Debentures will be
redeemable, in whole or in part, at the option of Finlay, at specified redemp-
tion prices plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of the redemp-
tion. In the event of a Change of Control (as defined in the indenture relating
to the Senior Debentures (as amended, the “Senior Debenture Indenture” and
collectively, with the Senior Note Indenture, the “Senior Indentures™)), each
holder of the Senior Debentures will have the right to-require the Company to
repurchase its Senior Debentures at a purchase price equal to 101% of the
principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the
repurchase date. The Senior Debentures rank pari passu in right of payment

with all unsubordinated indebtedness of the Company and senior in right of pay-
ment to all subordinated indebtedness of the Company. The Senior Debentures
are secured by a first priority lien on and security interest in all of the issued
and outstanding stock of Finlay Jewelry. However, the operations of the
Company are conducted through Finlay Jewelry and, therefore, the Company is
dependent upon the cash flow of Finlay Jewelry to meet its obligations, includ-
ing its obligations under the Senior Debentures. As a result, the Senior
Debentures are effectively subordinated to all indebtedness and all other obliga-
tions of Finlay Jewelry. The Senior Debenture Indenture contains restrictions
relating to, among other things, the payment of dividends, the making of cettain
investments or other restricted payments, the incurrence of additional indebted-
ness, the creation of certain liens, entering into transactions with affiliates, the
disposition of certain assets and engaging in mergers and consclidations.

The fair value of the Senior Debentures, determined based on market quotes,
was approximately $67,500,000 at February 1, 2003.

Finlay was in compliance with all of the provisions of the
Senior Indentures as of and for the year ended February 1, 2003.

The aggregate amounts of long-term debt payable in each of
the five years in the period ending February 1, 2008 and there-
after are as follows:

(In thousands)

2003 .. $ —
2004 L e —
2005 . e —
2006 . .. —
2007 L e —
Thereafter . ... ... ... . . 225,000

$225,000

Interest expense for 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $24,968,000,
$27,045,000 and $30,185,000, respectively. Interest income for the
same periods was $92,000, $108,000 and $128,000, respectively.

NOTE 5—STOCKHOLDERS  EQUITY

The Company’s Long Term Incentive Plan (the “1993 Plan”)
permits the Company to grant to key employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries, consultants and certain other per-
sons, and directors of the Company (other than members of the
Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors),
the following: (i) stock options; (ii) stock appreciation rights in
tandem with stock options; (iii) limited stock appreciation rights
in tandem with stock options; (iv) restricted or nonrestricted
stock éwards subject to such terms and conditions as the
Compensation Committee shall determine; (v) performance
units which are based upon attainment of performance goals dur-
ing a period of not less than two nor more than five years and
which may be settled in cash or in Common Stock at the discre-
tion of the Compensation Committee; or (vi) any combination
of the foregoing. Under the 1993 Plan, the Company may grant




stock options which are either incentive stock options within the
meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended (the “Code”), or non-incentive stock options. As
‘of February 1, 2003, an aggregate of 732,596 shares of the
Company’s Common Stock has been reserved for issuance pur-
suant to the 1993 Plan, of which a total of 455,320 shares are
subject to options granted to certain senior management, ke&l
employees and a director. The exercise prices of such options
range from $7.23 per share to $16.50 per share.

On March 6, 1997, the Board of Directors of the: Company
adopted the 1997 Long Term Incentive Plan (the “1997 Plan”),
which was approved by the Company’s stockholders in June
1997. The 1997 Plan, which is similar to the 1993 Plan, is
intended as a successor to the 1993 Plan and provides for the
grant of the same types of awards as are currently available under
the 1993 Plan. Of the 1,850,000 shares of the Company’s
Common Stock that have been reserved for issuance pursuant to
the 1997 Plan, a total of 1,133,015 shares, as of February 1, 2003,
are subject to options granted to certain senior management, key
employees and directors. The exercise prices of such options
range from $7.05 per share to $24.31 per share.

The Company has adopted the disclosure-only provisions of
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”.
As permitted-by SFAS No. 123, the Company elected to con-
tinue to account for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic
value method. Accordingly, no compensation expense has been
recognized for its stock-based compensation plans. Had the fair
value method of accounting been applied to the Company’s stock
option plans, which requires recognition of compensation cost

ratably over the vesting period of the stock options, Net income

and Net income per share would be as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

" February 1, February 2,  February 3,

(In thousands, except per share data) 2003 2002 2001
Net income:
Reported net income. ... ... .. $7,039 $18,535 $26,521
Less: Stock-based compensation

determined under the fair

value method, net of tax . . . . . (675) (716} (2,060)
Pro formanet income . ....... $6,364 $17,819 $24,461
Basic net income per share:
Reported net income per share . . $ 0.75 $ 1.82 $ 254
Pro forma net income per share. . $ 0.68 § 175 § 234
Diluted net income per share:
Reported net income per share . . $0.73 $ 1.80 $ 252
Pro forma net income per share. . $ 0.66 $ 173 § 232

The fair value of options granted in 2002, 2001 and 2000 was
estumated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model based
on the weighted average market price at the grant date of $12.01
in 2002, $7.48 in 2001 and $12.75 in 2000 and the following
weighted average assumptions: risk free interest rate of 4.73%,
4.62% and 6.80% for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively,
expected life of seven years for each of 2002, 2001 and 2000 and
volatility of 56.56% for 2002, 51.13% for 2001 and 49.48% for
2000. The weighted average fair value of options granted in
2002, 2001 and 2000 was $4.33, $2:57 and 8$5.22, respectively.

The following summarizes the transactions pursuant to the Company’s-1993 Plan and 1997 Plan for 2002, 2001 and 2000:

2002 2001 2000
Number of Wtd. Avg. Number of Wtd. Avg. " Number of Wtid. Avg.
. Options Ex. Price. Options Ex. Price Options Ex. Price
Outstanding at beginning of year . ... ... ... ... .. ... 1,650,035 $11.26 1,361,036 $12.10 1,138,400 § 979
Granted . .. .. . . 35,000 -12.01 324,000 - 7.48 272,100 12.75
Exercised. .. .. ... ... (87,627) 8.04 (14,967) 8.13 (10,633) 7.94
Forfeited . .. ... ... ... .. . . .. (7,073) 10.78 (20,034) 9.84 (38,831) 13.73
Quustanding atend of year. ... ........ .. ... .. ... 1,590,335 $11.46 1,650,035 $11.26 1,361,036 $12.10
Exercisable atend of year. . ... ... ... L 1,078,482 $12.27 973,421 $12.22 880,282 $11.89

The options outstanding at February 1, 2003 have exercise
prices between $7.05 and $24.31, with a weighted average exer-
cise price of $11.46 and a weighted average remaining contrac-
tual life of 5.22 years. Options generally vest in five years and
expire in ten years from their dates of grant.

On December 1, 2000, the Company announced that its Board
of Directors had approved a stock repurchase program to acquire
up to $20 million of outstanding Common Stock. The Company
may; at the discretion of management, purchase its Common Stock,
from tme to time, through September 29, 2003. The extent and
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timing of repurchases will depend upon general business and market
conditions, stock prices, availability under the Revolving Credit
Facility, compliance with certain restrictive covenants and its cash
position and requirements going forward. The repurchase pro-
gram may be modified, extended or terminated by the Board of
Directors at any time. During 2002, the Company repurchased
733,612 shares for $8,426,000 including (i) the repurchase of
526,562 shares for $5,792,000 from a partnership, the managing
partner of the general partner of which is also a director of Finlay
and (ii) the repurchase of an aggregate 50,000 shares for $712,500
from a partnership and a trust affiliated with a former director of
Finlay and certain other persons affiliated therewith. During 2001
and 2000, the Company repurchased a total of 599,330 shares for
$5,367,000.

On February 4, 2001, an executive officer of the Company
was issued 100,000 shares of Common Stock, subject to restric—
tions (“Restricted Stock”), pursuant to a restricted stock agree-
ment. The Restricted Stock becomes fully vested after four years
of continuous employment by the Company and is accounted for
as a component of stockholders’ equity. Compensation expense
of approximately $1.2 million is being amortized over four years
and totaled approximately $300,000 in each of 2002 and 2001.

MOTE 6—LEASE AGREEMENTS
Finlay conducts all of its operations as leased departments in

department stores. All of these leases, as well as rentals for office -

space and equipment, are accounted for as operating leases. A
substantial number of such operating leases expire on various
dates through 2008.

Substantially all of the department store leases provide that the
title to certain fixed assets of Finlay transfers upon termination of
the leases, and that Finlay will receive the undepreciated value of
such fixed assets from the host store in the event such transfers
occur. The values of such fixed assets are recorded at the inception
of the lease arrangement and are reflected in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

In several cases, Finlay is subject to limitations under its lease
. agreentents with host department stores which prohibit Finlay
from operating departments for other store groups within a certain
geographical radius of the host store

The store leases provide for the payment of fees based on sales,
plus, in some instances, installment payments for fixed assets.
Only minimum fees, as represented in the table below, are guar-
anteed by the lease agreements with host department stores.

Lease expense, included in Selling, general and administrative
expenses, 1s as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended

February 1,  February 2,  February 3,

2003 2002 2001
Minimum fees. ... ......... $ 2,129 $ 10,151 § 15,851
Contingent fees. . . . ........ 152,233 147,633 149,245
Total ........ ... ... $154,362 $157,784  $165,096

Future minimum payments under noncancellable operating
leases having initial or remaining noncancellable lease terms in
excess of one year are as follows as of February 1, 2003:

(In thousands)

2003 . . $ 1,974
2004 . L e 1,995
2005 . . e e 1,930
2006. . . 1,917
2007 .. 1,917
Thereafter . . . .. ... . .. 1,278

Total minimum payments required . . . ... .......... $11,011

————

NOTE 7—PROFIT-SHARING PLAN

Finlay maintains a defined contribution profit-sharing plan to
provide retirement benefits for all personnel. This plan provides
for company matching contributions of $0.25 for each $1.00 of
employee contribution, up to 5% of the employee’s salary, as lim-
ited by the Code, which begin to vest upon the completion of
two years of employment and accrues at the rate of 20% per year.
Additionally, Finlay contributes 2% of the employees’ earnings
annually, as limited by the Code, which begin to vest upon the
completion of three years of employment and accrues at the rate
of 20% per year. Company contributions totaled $2,011,000,
$1,856,000 and $1,989,000 for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

NOTE 8—INCOME TAXES

For income tax reporting purposes, the Company has an
October 31 year end. The Company files a consolidated Federal
income tax return with its wholly owned subsidiary, Finlay
Jewelry and its wholly owned subsidiaries.

Deferred income taxes at year end reflect the impact of tem-

porary differences between amounts of assets and liabilities for

financial and tax reporting purposes.




Deferred tax assets and liabilities at year end are as follows:

February 1, February 2,

(In thousands) . 2003 2002
Deferred Tax Assets
Vendor allowances . .. .............. $$11,722 $  —
Uniform inventory capitalization . . .. ... 3,790 4,024
Expenses not currently deductible .. . . .. 3,008 1,731
AMTeredit, . ...... .. ... ... ..... 566 566
. 19,086 6,321
Valuation allowance .. .............. 100 100
Total current . ... ... ... ... ... 18,986 6,221 -
Deferred financing costs—non-current. . . 253 278
Total non-current. . ... ........... 253 278
Total deferred tax assets . . . .. ... .. 19,239 6,499
Deferred Tax Liabilities
LIFO inventory valuation . . .. ... .. ... 9,128 9,222
Total current . .. ........ S 9,128 9,222
Depreciation and amortizaton . .. ....... 18,653 13,538 .
Total non-current. . ... .. . . 18,653 13,538
Total deferred tax liabilities. . . . .. .. . 27,781 22,760
Net deferred income tax .
liabilities . ...l $ 8,542 $16,261
Net current deferred income tax -
(assets) liabilities . . ... ... ... .. $(9,858) $ 3,001
Net non-current deferred income )
tax labilities . ... ... .. L L 18,400 . 13,260

Net deferred income tax .
liabilities . .. .............. $ 8,542 816,261

The components of income tax expense, before the cumula-
tive effect of accounting change, are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended

February 1, February 2,  February 3,

2003 '2002 2001
Currentaxes ... ........... $11,586 $12,071° 317,193_
Deferred taxes .. .. ... .. e 3,994 1,664 2,515
Income tax.expense. . . .. ... .. $15,580 $13,735 $19,708

A reconciliation of the income tax provision computed by
applying the federal statutory rate to Income before income taxes

to the Provision for income taxes on the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Operations is as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended

February 1, February 2, = February 3,

2003 2002 2001
Federal statutory provision. . . . . $13,940 $11,295 $16,180
State tax, net of federal benefit. . 1,418 1,234 2,329
Non-deductible amortization . . . —_ 1,037 1,037
Other ................... 222 169 162
Provision for income taxes. . . . . © $15,580 813,735 $19,708

In 2002, the Company recorded an income tax benefit of
$11,713,000 in connection with the cumulative effect of
accounting change.

At October 31, 2002, the Company had a net operating loss
(“NOL”) carryforward for tax purposes of approximately
$1,600,000 which expires in 2005. At October 31, 2002, the
Company also had Alternative Minimum Tax Credit carryovers of
$566,000 which may be used indefinitely to reduce federal income
taxes. SFAS No. 109 “Accounting for Income Taxes”, requires
that the tax benefit of such NOLs and tax credits be recorded as an
asset to the extent that management assesses the utilization to be
“more likely than not”. As the accompanying Consolidated
Financial Statements include profits earned after the tax year end at
October 31 (the profit of the year-end holiday season), for finan-
cial reporting purposes only, the NOL carryforward has been
absorbed in full and no NOL carryforward exists as of February 1,
2003. Management determined at February 1, 2003 that, based
upon the Company’ history of operating results and its expecta-
tions for the future, no additional valuation allowance is warranted.

NOTE 9—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company, from time to time, is involved in litigation
concerning its business affairs. Management believes that the
resolution of all pending litigation will not have a material
adverse effect on the consolidated financial statements.

The Company has an employment agreement with one senior
executive which provides for 2 minimum salary level as well as
incentive compensation based on nﬂeet‘mg specific financial goals.
Such agreement has a remaining term of two vears and has
a remaining aggregate minimum value of $1,975,000 as of
February 1, 2003.




The Revolving Credit Agreement, the Gold Consignment
Agreement and the Senior Note Indenture currently restrict
annual distributions from Finlay Jewelry to the Company to
0.25% of Finlay Jewelry'’s net sales for the preceding fiscal year
and also allow distributions to the Company to enable it to make
interest payments on the Senior Debentures. Othér dividends
and distributions, including those required to fund stock or bond
repurchases, are subject to Finlay’s satisfaction of certain restric-
tive covenants.

The Company’s concentration of credit risk consists principally
of accounts receivable. Over the past three years, approximately

O
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70% of Finlay’s sales were from operations in the May Department
Stores Company (“May”) and departments operated in store
groups owned by Federated Department Stores (“Federated”), of
which approximately 47% and 23% represented Finlay’s sales in
May and Federated, respectively. The Company believes that the
risk associated with these receivables, other than those from
department store groups indicated above, would not have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or

" results of operations.

NOTE 10—QUARTERLY FIKANCIAL DATA (UNMAUDITED)
The following table summarizes the quarterly financial data for 2002 and 2001 (dollars in thousands, except per share data). In

The Company has not provided any thirdlpafty financial
guarantees as of February 1, 2003.

accordance with SFAS No. 3, “Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements”, the 2002 quarterly financial data has
been revised to reflect the Company’s retroactive adoption of EITF 02-16 to the beginning of 2002. :
’ Fiscal Year Ended February 1, 2003
First - Second Third Fourth

. Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter(®)
As Revised:
Sales. . o e $187,365 $187,130 $168,359 $387,855
Gross MAargin. . ... .ottt e 98,156 95,962 87,897 198,162
Selling, general and administrative expenses . .. ..... ... .. ... oL 88,069 86,704 82,997 141,569
Income from Operations . . . . .. .ottt i 5,730 4,821 513 53,640
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change .. ... ... ... .. ... ... (33) (744) (3,341) 28,366
Cumulative effect of accounting change, netoftax . = ... ... . ... .. .. ....... (17,209) —_- I =
Net income (10Ss) . . . v vt e (17,242) (744) (3,341) 28,366
Basic net income {loss) per share(®: )

Income (loss) per share before cumulative effect of accounting change. ... ... . ... $ —_ $ (0.08) $  (0.36) $  3.07

Cumulative effect of accounting change . .. ... ... ... ... .. . (1.78) - — —

Basic net income (loss) pershare . ... ... ... $ (1.78) . $ (0.08) $ (0.36) $  3.07
Diluted net income (loss) per share@: ‘

Income (loss) per sharé before cumulative effect of accounting change . . ... ... ... $ — $ (.08 $ (036) $ 3.00

Cumulative effect of accounting change . .. ... .. ... i {1.78) _— — —

Diluted net income (loss) share . .. ... ... ... . o o L $ (1.78) $ (0.08) $ (0.36) $ 3.00

Fiscal Year Ended February 1, 2003
First Second Third
" Quarter Quarter Quarter

As Previously Reported:
Sales. .o e e $187,365 $187,130 $168,359
Gross margin. . . .. .. e e e DR 93,991 91,810 84,157
Selling, general and administrative expenses ... ... ... ... L oo 84,492 82,097 78,995
[ncome ffom OPErations . . . .« vttt e 5,142 5,276 775
Netincome (I0Ss) . .. ... it (383) (473) (3,185)
Net income (loss) per share applicable to common shares®); )

Basic net income (loss) pershare . ... ... ... (0.04) (0.05) (0.34)

................................... (0.04) (0.05) (0.34)

Diluted net income (loss). per share




Fiscal Year Ended February 2, 2002

(a) Net income (loss) per share for each quarter is computed as if each quarter were
" does not necessarily equal the net income (loss) per share for the year.
(b) Net income and net income per share in the fourth quarter includes a credit for

MOTE 11—JAY B. RUDOLPH, iNC. ACQUISITION

On April 3, 2000, Finlay completed the acquisition of certain
assets of Jay B. Rudolph, Inc. (“].B. Rudolph”) for $20.6 million,
consisting primarily of inventory of approximately $16.3 million
and fixed assets of approximately $4.0 million. By acquiring
J1.B. Rudolph (the “J.B. Rudolph Acquisition”), Finlay added
‘57 departments and also added new host store relationships
with Bloomingdale’s and Dayton’s and Hudson's (both now oper-
ating as Marshall Field’s). Finlay financed the acquisition of
J.B. Rudolph with borrowings under the Revolving Credit
Agreement. The ].B. Rudolph Acquisition was accounted for as
a purchase, and, accordingly, the operating results of the former
J.B. Rudolph departments have been included in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisition.
The Company recorded goodwill of $1.7 million. ‘

The following summarized, unaudited pro forma combined
results of operations for the year ended February 3, 2001 has
been prepared assuming the J.B. Rudolph Acquisition occurred
at the beginning of 2000. The pro forma information is provided
for informational purposes only. It is based on historical informa-
tion, as well as certain ‘assumptions and estimates, and does not
necessarily reflect the actual results that would have occurred nor
is it necessarily indicative of future results of operations of the
combined company. (dollars in thousands, except per share data):

Fiscal Year Ended

February 3,
(Unaudited) 2001
Sales. . ... $1,010,911
Netincome............ ... ... .o .. 27,009
Net income per share:
Basic netincome pershare. . .. ... ... L 8 2.59
Diluted net income pershare. .. ............. $ 257

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Sales. L $ 193,249 $196,167 $175,292 $388,081
GIrosS MALGI. « .o oo 98,368 97,687 87,612 189,867
Netincome (I0SS) . . ..o v it e (1,719) (1,061) (3,278) 24,593

Net income (loss) per share applicable to common shares®): » - ‘

- Basic net income (loss) pershare . ... ... . .. Lo 0.17) 0.10y 0.32) 2.47
Diluted net income (loss) pershare . ... ... 0 oo Lo 0.17) 0.10) 0.32) 2.44

a discrete period. As such, the total of the four quarters net income (loss) per share

the Company’s revision of its original estimate for closure expenses associated with

the sale and closure of Sonab in the amount of $852,000, net of tax. Refer to Note 13.

"M@TE 12—STORE GROUP CLOSINGS

. On February 8, 2001, Federated announced its plans to close
its Stern’s division in which Finlay operated 23 departments.
Finlay closed the majority of the Stern’s departments during the
second quarter of 2001 and, as a result, recorded a charge of
approximately $1.0 million related to the write-off of fixed assets
and employee severance. During 2001, Federated acquired the
Liberty House department store chain. In 2001, Finlay recorded
-a charge of approximately $150,000 related to the write-off of
fixed assets and employee severance. During 2002, sales were
reduced by apptoximately $31.0 million compared to the prior
year as a result of the closing of Stern’s, Liberty House and
another smaller host store group.

MOTE $3—SALE ANMD CLOSURE OF SONAB

During 1998, Société Nouvelle d’Achat de Bijouterie—
S.O.N.AB. (“Sonab”), the Company’s European leased jewelry
department subsidiary, began to experience lower sales trends
due to the transition from a promotional pricing strategy to an
everyday low price strategy. This change was made as a result of

* Sonab reassessing its pricing policy following certain local French

court decisions. The adverse impact of such change continued
through 1999. As a result of the foregoing, on January 3, 2000,
Sonab sold the majority of its assets for approximately $9.9 mil-
lion. After the sale, the buyer operated more than 80 locations
previéusly included in Sonab’s 130-location base in France. The
remaining departments were closed.

The Company recorded a pre-tax charge in the fourth quarter
of 1999 of $28.6 million, or $1.62 per share on a diluted basis
after-tax, for the write-down of assets for disposition and related
closure expenses. The pre-tax components of the charge, the
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related income tax effects and the net cash portion of the charge.
are as follows (dollars in millions):

Costs associated with the write-down of inventory
for liquidation ‘

Costs associated with the write-off of undepreciated
fixed assets

Realization of foreign exchange losses

Payroll and severance costs

Other close-down costs(®

Sub-total
Income tax benefit

Net after tax
Non-cash—foreign exchange losses above

Net cash portion of charge

NOTE 14—UNAUDITED PRC FORMA FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

The following table presents pro forma financial information
for 2002, which reflects (i) the Company’s domestic operations
only and excludes the revised estimate of expenses associated
with the closure of Sonab, and (ii) excludes the cumulative effect
of accounting change resulting from the adoption of EITF 02-16.
Refer to Notes 2 and 13 for additional information. In addition,
the Company’s actual results for 2001 and 2000 are shown for
comparative purposes.

Fiscal Year Ended

February 1,
2003
Pro Forma

February 2,
2002
Actual

February 3,
2001
Actual.

(In thousands, extept share and
per share amounts) (Unaudited)

(a) Including transfer of inventory, furniture removal, main office costs during
close-down period, lease termination costs, litigation and professional fees.

All of Sonab’s employees, excluding those that were hired by
the buyer, were involuntarily terminated, inclﬁding sales associates,
supervisors and corporate personnel. As of February 1, 2003, the
Company’s exit plan has been completed with the exception of
certain employee litigation and other legal matters. During the
fourth quarter of 2002, .the Company revised its original estimate
of closure expenses to reflect its remaining liability and, as a
result, recorded a credit of $1.4 million. To date, the Company
has charged a total of $26.4 million against its revised estimate of
$27.2 million. The Company does not believe future operating
results will be materially impacted by any remaining payments.

Net Income:

Reported netincome. . .. ... ..... $ 7,039 $18,535 $26,521
Less: Credit associated with the

sale and closure of Sonab. . .. .. .. (1,432) — —
Add: Provision for income taxes . . . . - " 580 — —
Add: Cumulative effect of

accounting change, net of tax . . . . 17,209 - —
Pro forma netincome ... ........ $23,396 $18,535 826,521
Basic net income per share: )
Reported net income per share . . . . . $ 0.75 $ 182 $ 254
Credit associated with the sale and

closure of Sonab, netof tax . . . . . . (0.09) — —
Add: Cumulative effect of

accounting change ... ......... 1.83 — —
Pro forma net income per share . . .. 8§ 2,49 $ 1.82 § 2.54
Diluted net income ~per share:
Reported net income per share . . . . . § (.73 § 1.80 $ 252
Credit associated with the sale and

closure of Sonab,‘net oftax. ... .. (0.09) — —
Add: Cumulative effect of

accounting change . ......... .. 1.78 — —
Pro forma net income per share . . .. § 242 § 1.80 $ 252
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Market for the Company’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The common stock, par value $.01 per share {(“Common
Stock™), of the Company is traded on the Nasdaq National
Market under the symbol “FNLY”. The high and low sales prices
for the Common Scock during 2002 and 2001 were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

February 1, 2003 February 2, 2002

High Low High Low
First Quarter $14.75 8 9.31 ($1425 8 9.00
Second Quarter 18.80 12.66 12.92 10.10
Third Quarter 18.99 11.60 13.00 5.45
Fourth Quarter 15.00 10.50 11.11 6.35

The Company has never paid cash dividends on its Common
Stock and has no present intention to pay any cash dividends in
the foreseeable future. Certain restrictive covenants in the Senior
Indentures, the Revolving Credit Agreement and the Gold
Consignment Agreement impose limitations on the payment of
dividends by the Company (including Finlay Jewelry’s ability to
pay dividends to the Company). See “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”.

During 2002, cash dividends of $15.7 million were distrib-
uted by Finlay Jewelry to the Company. The distributions are

generally utilized to pay interest on the Senior Debentures and
certain expénses of the Company, such as legal, accounting and
directors’ fees and to purchase Common Stock under the stock
repurchase program described below.

On December 1, 2000, the Company announced that its
Board of Directors had approved a stock repurchase program to
acquire up to §20 million of Common Stock. The Company
may, at the discretion of management, purchase its Common
Stock, from time to time through September 29, 2003 under the
stock repurchase program. The extent and timing of repurchases
will depend upon general business and market conditions, stock
prices, -availability under the Revolving Credit Facility, compli-
ance with certain restrictive covenants and its cash position and
requirements going forward. As of February 1, 2003, the
Company repurchased 1,332,942 shares for $13.8 million.

As of April 29, 2003, there were 9,204,408 shares of Common
Stock "outstanding and approximately 33 record holders of the
Common Stock, including holders who are nominees for an
undetermined number of beneficial owners, estimated to be in
excess of 500. The last i-eported sale price for the Comnion Stock
on the Nasdaq National Market on April 29, 2003 was $13.31.
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’ , }Ihdependent Auditors’ Report

To the Stockholders aﬁd Board of Directors
of Finlay Enterprises, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet

of Finlay Enterprises, Inc. (a Delaware corporation) and sub-
sidiaries as of February 1, 2003, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity and
comprehensive income and cash flows for the fiscal year then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
“Company’s managém}ent‘ Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. The
Company’s financial statements for the fiscal years ended
February 2, 2002 and February 3, 2001, before the inclusion of
the transitional disclosures discussed in Note 5 with respect to
Statement of Financial Accounting. Standards (“SFAS”) No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock Based Compensation—Transition and
Disclosure” and in Note 2 with respect to SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, were audited by other
auditors who have ceased operations. Those auditors expressed
an unqualified opinion on those financial statéments in their
report dated March 20, 2002.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those stand-
ards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reason-
able assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the'
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimatés made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Finlay
Enterprises, Inc. and subsidiaries as of February 1, 2003, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for the fiscal year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. '

As discussed in-Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Company changed its method of accounting for vendor
allowances in 2002 to conform to Emerging Issues Task Force
Issue No. 02-16.

As discussed above, the Company’s fiscal 2001 and 2000 con-
solidated financial statements were audited by other auditors who
have ceased operations. These financial statements have been
revised to include the transitional disclosures required by SFAS
No. 148 and SFAS No. 142. Our audit procedures with respect
to the transitional disclosures included in Notes 5 and 2 with

-respect to 2001 and 2000 included (1) comparing the amount of

stock-based compensation expense to the Company’s underlying
analysis obtained from management, (2) comparing the previ-
ously reported net income to the previously issued financial

. statements and the adjustments to reported net income represent-

ing stock-based compensation and amortization expense related
to goodwill, (including any related tax effects) recognized in

“those periods, to the Company’s underlying analysis obtained

from management, and (3) testing the mathematical accuracy of
the reconciliation of adjusted or pro forma net income, as appli-
cable, to reported net income and the related net income per
share amounts. In our opinion, the disclosures for 2001 and 2000
in Notes 5 and 2 are appropriaté. However, we were not
engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the 2001
and 2000 ‘consolidated financial statements of the Company
other than with respect to such disclosures and reclassifications ‘
and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other
form of assurance on the 2001 and 2000 consolidated-financial
statements taken as a whole. ‘

v Tawdy LL P

the Company changed its method of accounting for goodwill and ~ New York, New York

other intangible assets in 2002 to conform to SFAS No. 142.

April 14, 2003




The following report is a copy of a previously issued Report of Independent Public Accountants. This report relates to prior years’
financial statements. This report has not been reissued by Arthur Andersen LLP. Arthur Andersen reported on the 2001 and 2000
consolidated financial statements prior to the transitional disclosure discussed in Notes 2 and 5.

" Report of Independent Public Accountants

To the Stockholders and Board 6f Directors
of Finlay Enterprises, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of Finlay Enterprises, Inc. (a Delaware corporition) and
subsidiaries as of February 3, 2001 and Febr'uary’2, 2002, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stock-
holders’ equity and cash flows for the fiscal years ended January
29, 2000, February 3, 2001 and February 2, 2002. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits. .

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing stand-~
ards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes- examining, on a test

basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the -

financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting

principleé used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We |
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Finlay Enterprises, Inc. and subsidiaries as of February 3, 2001
and February 2, 2002, and the results of their operations and
their-cash flows for the fiscal years ended January 29, 2000,
February 3, 2001 and February 2, 2002, in conformity with
accounting, principles generally accepted in the United States.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

New York, New York
March 20, 2002
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